Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON
C h] ld ren ) You n g Councillors on the Committee
People and Jane Palmer (Chairman)

. . Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman)
Learning Policy Teil Bamec
Overview Jom Duducu

. Duncan Flynn
Committee Becky Haggar

Tony Eginton
Date: WEDNESDAY, 13 APRIL Peter Money

2016 Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead)

Time: 7.00 PM
Other Voting Representative
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - Anthony Little, Roman Catholic Diocesan.

CIVIC CENTRE,

HIGH STREET, UXBRIDGE

UB8 1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday, 5 April 2016

Contact: Jon Pitt
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: jpitt@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=323&Year=0

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking \/ N
& A
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at J
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a

! Uxbrid
short walk away. Limited parking is available at F'a--llmn wla-e}b\\
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Shopping [l 0008

. Centre Il"l_t_U'—"'
how to book a parking space, please contact ’ i
Democratic Services. Please enter from the ‘> o
Council’s main reception where you will be car gurk

directed to the Committee Room. Gl i

Muzimring

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.



Terms of Reference

A central role of a Policy Overview Committees is to undertake in-depth policy reviews on
specific issues. Reviews provide the opportunity to hear from members of the public and
expert witnesses, including people from a wide range of external organisations. Reviews
usually make recommendations to the Cabinet on how the Council could improve its work.
They therefore perform an important role in opening up the policy-making process to a
wider audience, including people who would not normally have the opportunity to
participate.

This Committee undertakes the policy overview role in relation to the following matters:

Education Services and statutory education authority functions
School performance and attainment

School Transport

Relationships with Local Academies / Free Schools
Pre-School & Early Years Services

Youth Services & Careers Services

Juvenile justice & probation services

Adult Learning

Education and learning partnerships

Music & The Arts

Social care services for children, young persons and children with special needs
Adoption and Fostering

Family Services



Agenda

10

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before the meeting

To confirm that items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in
public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

To Agree the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 16 March 2016

Single Meeting Review - Supporting Educational Aspiration for
Disadvantaged Children

Children and Young People's Social Care Service Improvement Plan
- Progress Report

Quarterly School Places Planning Update

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) - Update

Forward Plan

Work Programme 2015/16

17 - 64

65 - 66

67 - 76

77 -80

81-84



Agenda ltem 4
Minutes ﬁ%@

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

NORWARS

HNILLINGDON
16 March 2016 LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Teji Barnes,
Duncan Flynn, Ray Graham, Becky Haggar, Peter Money, John Morse and

Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead) and Mr Tony Little.

LBH Officers Present:

Dan Kennedy, Head of Business Performance, Policy and Standards

Laurie Baker, Education Services - Manager Strategy and Quality

Naveed Mohammed, Service Manager Business Performance

Belinda Hearn, LBH Early Intervention and Prevention, Key Working Service
Tom Murphy, Head of Early Intervention and Prevention

Laura Palmer, School Placement and Admissions Team Manager

Charles Francis, Democratic Services Officer

Also Present:

Elizabeth Horrigan, Headteacher, Harlington School

Ann Bowen-Breslin, Head Teacher at Hilingdon Primary School.
Taneesha Morris, Pastoral Care Manager at Hillingdon Primary School

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Duducu and Councillor Eginton
Councillors Graham and Morse acted as substitutes.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Clir. Becky Haggar declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item number 5, the
Major Review Witness Session. This was due to personal family circumstances. ClIr.
Haggar left the room while the item was discussed.

TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 3)

It was agreed that all items were Part | and would be discussed in public.

TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 FEBRUARY 2016
(Agenda Item 4)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2016 be agreed
as a correct record.

Page 1




SINGLE MEETING REVIEW - SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL ASPIRATION FOR
DISADVANTAGED CHILDREN (Agenda Item 5)

The Head of Business Performance, Policy and Standards drew the Committee's

attention to the terms of reference for the review and the following points were noted:
e Government figures showed that children from disadvantaged backgrounds

were far less likely to get good GCSE results.

Attainment figures published in January 2015 showed that nationally in

2013/2014, 33.5% of disadvantaged pupils achieved at least 5 A*- C GCSEs (or

equivalent) grades, including English and mathematics, compared to 60.5% of

all other pupils, a difference of 27%."

e Within Hillingdon, the 2015 figures show that 39% of pupils eligible for free
school meals in the last six years achieved 5 A*-C GCSEs (including English
and Maths), compared to 64% of other pupils which equated to a gap of 25% in
terms of outcomes at age 16 between disadvantaged young people and their
non-disadvantaged peers.

e Whilst the attainment gap is greater at secondary level, evidence at national and
local level highlights that disadvantage is a key indicator of academic success
and educational opportunity at all phases.

e Taken as a whole, Hillingdon is not a deprived Borough, as highlighted in local
strategic plans, including the Hillingdon Joint Health & Well-Being Plan 2014-17
and the Children & Families Trust Plan. There are pockets of the Borough that
have relatively higher levels of deprivation.

¢ In terms of the Department for Education's Local Authority Interactive Tool (LAIT
version 5) indicates that the numbers of pupils in the Borough eligible for Free
School Meals has increased each year for the past five years and now stands at
12,190 (an increase of approx 4000 children since 2010/11).

e By comparison, the number of children eligible for Free School Meals in
neighbouring boroughs and across London has decreased in 2014/15. If, as
current data suggests, Hillingdon has an increasing number of children
considered to be disadvantaged and if 2014/15 outcomes for disadvantaged
children at secondary level in Hillingdon show an overall decline in standards, it
may be considered that the achievement and attainment of this particular group
of children is likely to have an increasingly significant impact on overall
standards of education in the Borough.

The Service Manager Business Performance took the Committee through the data
pack providing information on attainment levels of local pupils from a disadvantaged
background and their mainstream peers. Information provided covered the period
2013-2015.

Key items of note included:

e At Key Stage 1, and across all subjects - the gap in performance has over 2013-
2015, been consistently narrowing between disadvantaged pupils and their
mainstream peers.

e Performance in reading and writing has been particularly strong, although the
gap between disadvantaged children and others for Maths remained static
between 2014-2015.

e At Key Stage 2 - the picture across the three years 2013-2015 is generally
positive with the gap in relative performance narrowing. There were some
exceptions though namely Reading - where performance between 2014 and
2015 decreased.

! Office for National Statistics, January 2015 - https:/www.gov.uk/government/statistics/gcse-and-
equivalent-attainment-by-pupil-characteristics-2014 Page 2




On a more positive note and focusing on the percentage of children making
expected progress (page 27) - trend data shows performance for disadvantaged
pupils as consistently strong and in many cases better than their mainstream
peers.

At Key Stage 4 - the most notable issue of concern related to the varying
performance between 2013 and 2014 where whether measuring average point
score or looking at percentage of pupils reaching 5A*-C the gap in performance
between disadvantaged children locally and their Hillingdon peers widened.
Although performance is improved in 2015 - in many cases this is not by a
sufficient amount as to offset the drop over the previous period.

When looking at the data on expected progress - trends show that the gap in
performance between disadvantaged pupils and their mainstream peers re-
emerges.

Of particular concern is the inability of pupils from a disadvantaged background
who while achieving well at Key Stage 2 (i.e. those that reached higher levels of
progress) do not maintain this level of attainment into Key Stage 4. This local
picture is however consistent with national patterns where higher achieving
pupils (at Key Stage 2) from a disadvantaged background do not sustain this
performance through to Key Stage 4.

Liz Horrigan, Headteacher, Harlington School, introduced her witness submission in
relation to the major review. The key points raised included the following:

Harlington School was a large Foundation secondary school in the southern
most part of the Borough.
The school serves an area of high deprivation.
Despite this, a high percentage of students go on to study at the university of
their choice, including the Russell Group universities.
In January 2015 the school was inspected by Ofsted, and moved from 'Requires
Improvement' to 'Good'.
In 2014, Harlington School was in the top 10% of schools nationally for student
progress (SSAT).
Harlington has very large numbers of disadvantaged students and significant
Pupil Premium funding.
In terms of improving outcomes for disadvantaged pupils, the School:

1. Recruit high calibre staff and CPD - the quality of teaching is the key

driver.

2. All students are given aspirational targets.

3. University aspirations are nurtured from early on.

4. Invest in high quality Careers and Independent Advice & Guidance

(CIAG).

The School focuses on impact, not description — we ask ourselves - ‘So What?’
when undertaking development planning.
The School use nationally recognised good practice to audit the impact of its
practice — e.g. Pupil Premium Toolkit, Challenge the Gap, NFER etc.
Governor agendas are planned around quality of teaching, pupil outcomes,
behaviour and attendance, safeguarding and Pupil Premium / Closing the Gap
data on a termly basis.
Attainment drives progress — but progress was key when measuring
performance.
Poor attendance was often a key factor in disadvantaged pupil outcomes.
Student mobility was a key factor — Mid Year Admissions often required
intensive support outside of the mainstream environment. The school uses Pupil
Premiunm funding to secure additional support for those pupils that require it.—

Page 3




But if funding reduces, these provisions may be at risk. This may place pressure
on alternative provision in the authority, particularly if students are at risk of
exclusion, if schools reduce their supportive provisions.

In response to questions from Members, the witness advised that:

To tackle non-attendance, strategies included: Using the Participation and
Liaison Teams, attendance initiatives such as non uniform days, developing
strong relationships with parents and disallowing holiday absence.

In relation to feeder Primary Schools, it was noted that Primary Schools
provided intervention early on when it was most effective.

In terms of staffing, Members were informed that all disadvantaged pupils were
taught and no teaching was left to teaching assistants.

In terms of Pupil Premium, the Committee heard that this was listed in the
Schools Governance documentation which was overseen by the School's
Governing Body which were available for inspection. If Pupil Premium Funding
were stopped at the School, this would affect the equivalent of 8 posts at the
school.

The Team around the Family was used when appropriate and it was recognised
this was a key form of intervention.

Laurie Cornwell, Executive Headteacher, The Skills Hub / Young People's Academy
was unable to attend the meeting and the consideration of her written statement was
deferred to the next meeting.

Belinda Hearn, LBH Early Intervention and Prevention Team, introduced the witness
submission on behalf of Deborah Bell, in relation to the major review. The key points
raised included the following:

Early Intervention and Prevention Services assisted families by: providing a
range of early learning, childcare and family development services delivered
through early years centres and children's centres.

Targeted Programmes: met the needs of families by securing and providing
targeted programmes of developmental activity that enabled children, young
people and families to develop the behaviours, skills and capabilities to avoid or
overcome problems and risk.;

The Team prioritised outcomes for disadvantaged pupils by:

. The use of the Early Help Assessment (EHA) tool that Elected Members had

previously considered in associated reviews.
The offer of training had been disseminated via the Hillingdon Association of
Secondary Head-Teachers (HASH), Primary Forum and Headteachers' Briefing.

. If a Team Around the Family (TAF) was deemed appropriate, schools lead on

these processes for their own pupils. Should a school require additional support
with these processes, the Key Working Service is in place to ensure that support
is forthcoming to enable resident needs to be appropriately assessed and then a
consented plan devised to deliver required outcomes.

In terms of the strategies in place to raise the aspiration of disadvantaged young
people, these had been informed by the research from sources such as:

National Foundation for Education Research (NFER)

Munro recommendations

Early Intervention Foundation

Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and the
Department for Education had led the Key Working Service to focus on the
following approaches in order to support families to overcome problems that

Page 4




may be impacting on the aspirations and achievement of disadvantaged young
people within the family unit:

At a local level, measures to improve attainment included:
e Early Help Assessments

Team Around the Family

A 1 worker, 1 plan, 1 family model

Review and model of parenting domestic routines

Signpost to local services

House rules

Family relationship building

Mediation between parents

Advocacy

Benefits and housing

Healthy eating/cooking;

Safe relationships (including DV, CSE, sexual health);

How to play, read and interact;

Community based work to model behaviour management for parents with their

children;

Clinical psychology formulation and consultation;

e Clear objectives embedded by regular challenge and encouragement
consistently over an agreed period of time;

e Brokerage and mediation between schools and families;

e School attendance panels and legal intervention when necessary; and

e Enabling access to targeted programmes to attend to adolescent support and
development needs including those that may be impacting on the aspirations
and progression of vulnerable young people.

In terms of the evidence to illustrate that the above services were working and had
positive outcomes, the following information was noted:

For 2014-15, 2,947 pupils were referred to the Participation Key-work Team for poor
school attendance. Of that number, 2,462 were successfully closed as a consequence
of enabling the young people in question to improve their attendance to the required
standard. This represents 83.5% positive outcomes for families, including those with
disadvantaged children. For 2015/16 to date, 300 families received services from the
Preventative Key Working Team. 132 are still being worked with and 117 out of 151
closed are for a 'stepped down' reason, representing 77.5% positive outcomes for
residents.

In relation to the steps the Council was taking to support the attainment of children from
disadvantaged backgrounds, it was noted that:

e The Participation Key Working Team introduced a process in September 2014
whereby schools report on a monthly basis their pupils who attend less than
90%, pupils removed from roll and pupils on part time programmes. These
pupils form the focus of the Participation Key Workers consultations with schools
and 100% of pupil characteristic need identified. Within this cohort, pupils at risk
of exclusion are also identified to ensure services are in place to prevent this
outcome.

e The current DfE consultation on Children Missing Education was proposing a
very similar information exchange mechanism. The Committee were
encouraged to learn that Hillingdon would be well placed for this development
due to its earlier local identification of need in order to identify and seek to

Page 5




protect pupils vulnerable to under achievement.

e |n addition to its legal duties, the Participation Key Working Team was available
for commissioning by academies. 96% of secondary phase schools and
academies and 100% of primary phase schools and academies in Hillingdon
now have a Service Level Agreement with the Participation Key Work Team.

Ann Bowen-Breslin, Head Teacher at Hilingdon Primary School and Taneesha Moirris,
Pastoral Care Manager at Hillingdon Primary School attended the meeting and
provided a brief overview of the actions the school was taking to support aspiration for
disadvantaged children. Members requested Officers to contact the School outside the
meeting and for a written statement to be provided to inform the Committee's review.

The Committee thanked the witnesses for their contribution to the review.

RESOLVED - That:

1. The evidence provided be noted.

2. That the witness submission from Laurie Cornwell be considered at the
next meeting.

3. That Ann-Bowen Breslin, Head Teacher at Hilingdon Primary School be
requested to provide a written submission and for this to be considered at
the next meeting.

4. That conclusions and draft recommendations for the final report be
discussed at the next meeting.

5. That a draft final report be prepared for consideration at 14 June 2016
meeting.

UPDATE ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PAST
REVIEWS OF THE COMMITTEE. (Agenda Item 6)

The Committee was provided with a paper that gave an update on the
recommendations made by two previous reviews.

The review topics included:

e Elective Home Education
e Reducing the Risk of Young People Engaging in Criminal Activity and Anti-
Social Behaviour

In relation to Recommendation 1 of the review, 'Elective Home Education’, a
Committee Member enquired what steps were in place to assist Traveller families who
did not go through normal channels of communication or attend Ward surgeries.
Officers advised that social media, work shops delivered through local libraries and
extensive web based information was in place to assist families. Officers were also
working closely with Bell Farm Christian Centre to encourage the organisation to refer
Traveller families to the Local Authority, should this be required.

In relation to the numbers of children receiving Elective Home Education, it was noted
this had increased from 89 in 2010/11 to 224 in 2015/16 and nationally there had been
45% increase. Officers reported further work was underway to investigate the drivers
for this and to determine what more could be done locally to support this form of
provision. Officers explained that the results of the investigation would be shared with
the Committee upon its completion.

In relation to Recommendation 2 of the review, 'Elective Home Education’, it was noted

Page 6




that the Local Authority now used three main letters for parents/carers which had been
designed to take into account the POC review recommendations.

In relation to Recommendation 3 of the review, 'Elective Home Education’, it was noted
that the Skills Hub was available as an Exam Centre for the purpose of sitting GCSE or
A-Level examinations.

With regards to what steps the Local Authority could take if there was evidence a
parent was not home educating their child, Officers explained the guidance
encouraged families to work in partnership with the Local Authority. However, if this
was not working, the Local Authority could request evidence to be provided that home
educating was taking place. In those cases where this was not provided, Officers
confirmed that an Attendance Order could be issued. Officers explained that the
Participation Team was working closely with Schools and a joined up approach was
being taken.

In relation to Recommendation 4 of the review, 'Elective Home Education’, it was noted
Officers had updated the Elective Home Education policy document with minor
changes.

With regards to Recommendation 1 of the Reducing the Risk of Young People
Engaging in Criminal Activity and Anti-Social Behaviour review, the Committee were
encouraged that Officers were helping young people access the preventative services
and promoting the current offer.

In relation to Recommendation 3 of the review, Officers confirmed this was currently
being taken forward as described and the Youth Offending Service was working in
partnership with a number of partner organisations to promote suitable activities to
young offenders and their parents.

With regards to Recommendation 4, Officers confirmed that an aspect of drug
prevention focused on the work being conducted by the CLASH Theatre Project and
drug awareness work being progressed by Public Health. In response to a Member
question about the uptake and effectiveness of CLASH, Officers confirmed that further
information would be provided outside the meeting.

In relation to Recommendation 5, Officers confirmed that joint working and information
sharing between partner organisations was already well established with regards to
young people who may be at risk of engagement in criminal and anti-social behaviour.

Resolved: That:
1. The information be noted.
2. Officers provide the Committee with further information about Elective
Home Education when available later in the year.
3. Officers provide further information on the uptake and effectiveness of the
CLASH Theatre Project.

WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16 (Agenda Item 7)

It was noted that as this meeting had not considered the written statement from Laurie
Cornwell, had requested a written statement from Ann Bowen Breslin, Headteacher,
Hillingdon Primary School and had not discussed potential areas for recommendations,
these actions would be considered at the 13 April 2016 meeting. It was agreed that the
final report on Supporting Educational Attainment for Disadvantaged Children would be

Page 7




deferred from 13 April 2016 to 14 June 2016 meeting.

With regards to the LSCB update, the Committee requested that this be integrated into
the Work Programme of the new Committee and be considered at the beginning of the
next municipal year.

RESOLVED - That:

1. That further written evidence for the review be considered at 13 April 2016
meeting and for the Committee to discuss potential areas for
recommendations for the Final Report.

2. That the draft final report on Supporting Educational Attainment for
Disadvantaged Children be considered at 14 June 2016 meeting.

3. An LSCB update be incorporated into the new Work Programme of the
next municipal year; and

4. The Work Programme be noted.

FORWARD PLAN (Agenda ltem 8)

Head of Business Performance, Policy and Standards provided an update on the
Schools Capital Programme. Cabinet Members are currently considering options for
meeting the forecast need for additional secondary school places in the Borough.

At 13 January 2016, the Committee resolved that Early Years and Foundation Stage
data be circulated to the Committee, broken down by educational planning area (EPA).
Although this had been circulated by Ward, Officers confirmed it was not possible to
provide this data at EPA Level.

RESOLVED: That:
1. The Forward Plan be noted.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.00 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Jon Pitt on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 8




Agenda ltem 5

SINGLE MEETING REVIEW - SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL
ASPIRATION FOR DISADVANTAGED CHILDREN

Contact Officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655

REASON FOR ITEM

To enable the Committee to gather evidence as part of its Single Meeting Review
'Supporting Educational Aspiration for Disadvantaged Children.'

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE

1. To note the written evidence provided by Ann Bowen-Breslin, Headteacher of Hillingdon
Primary School and to provide comments.
2. To note the written evidence provided by Laurie Cornwell, Executive Headteacher of
The Skills Hub / Young People’s Academy and to provide comments.
. To propose draft recommendations and conclusions for the review.
. To agree that the draft final report should be presented to the Committee at its next
meeting in June.

AW

INFORMATION

Ann Bowen-Breslin will not be attending the meeting as she attended the March meeting
of the Committee. The written statement has been provided as a follow up to this.

The witness statement provided by Laurie Cornwell was included in the papers for the
previous Committee meeting in March, but was not discussed as Laurie was unable to
attend the meeting. Laurie has been invited to tonight's meeting, but it had not been
possible to confirm whether she would be able to attend by agenda dispatch.

PAPERS WITH THE REPORT
§ Written Submission: Ann Bowen-Breslin , Headteacher, Hillingdon Primary School.

§ Written Submission: Laurie Cornwell, Executive Headteacher of The Skills Hub and
Young People’s Academy.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL ASPIRATION FOR DISADVANTAGED
CHILDREN

WITNESS SUBMISSION

Name: Ann Bowen-Breslin
Role: Headteacher
Organisation: Hillingdon Primary School

SUMMARY OF THE ROLE OF YOUR SERVICE OR ORGANISATION

Hillingdon Primary School is a large, popular and over-subscribed school in the London
Borough of Hillingdon. It is part of the Borough’s expanding schools programme and started to
admit three forms of entry (90 pupils) in September 2012. In July 2014, a new build was
completed to accommodate additional pupils. The new build has significantly enhanced the
education of our pupils through improved facilities such as a large sports hall and a new IT
room.

Ofsted judged the school as ‘Outstanding’ in November 2012. The governing body, head
teacher and staff have worked hard to maintain this high standard as evidenced by key
indicators, such as key stage 1 and key stage 2 test results.

The school serves an aspirational community where the majority of pupils are from minority
ethnic groups and English is an additional language. This is significantly above the national
average and challenges us constantly to ensure a curriculum that is rich in modelling spoken
language.

We are at the national average for eligibility for free school meals (FSM). The levels of
deprivation indicator demonstrates that we are above the national average. Eligibility for FSMs
is declining; in the past we have been above the national average for FSM. We are monitoring
this carefully to determine the reasons and take any necessary action.

We are at the national average for stability. The mobility of pupils has reduced over the last
eight years as the popularity of the school has grown. This has minimised the workload
associated with high mobility and enabled us to have a more positive impact on a greater
number of pupils from nursery/reception through to year 6. Pupils leaving generally move due to
relocation to another area.

In July 2014 the school became a converter academy and joined the Elliot Foundation. The
decision to become an academy was a pragmatic approach to the changing educational
landscape. We chose the Elliot Foundation as it shares our ethos for education.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 11



OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

Outcome at Hillingdon Primary School- Key Stage 1

Year 1 Attainment in e Pupil premium pupils achieve above the national

Phonics average for pupil premium pupils.

e Pupil premium pupils are in line with the national
average for all pupils.

e Pupil premium pupils are broadly in line with the
national average for other pupils (all pupils minus
pupils eligible for pupil premium).

Attainment / End of Key e Pupil premium pupils are above the national average

Stage 1 for pupil premium pupils in reading, writing and
maths and in the three subjects combined. This
success is particularly marked in reading and maths.

e These pupils are at or broadly in line with all pupils
and other pupils nationally.

e There is a minimal in-school gap of less than one
average point score for all subjects.

Outcome at Hillingdon Primary School- Key Stage 2

Attainment / End of Key e Pupil premium pupils achieve above or at the
Stage 2 national average for pupil premium pupils in all
subjects.

¢ In maths, reading and the three subjects combined
pupil premium pupils are broadly in line with all
pupils nationally.

e There is an in-school gap between pupil premium
pupils and other pupils in the school. This is more
marked because of the high attainment (Sig+) of
other pupils in the school, particularly in maths,
English grammar, punctuation and spelling and the
three subjects combined.

e The progress of pupil premium pupils in combined

Progress / End of Key maths, reading and writing is significantly higher

Stage 2 (Sig+) than the national value added figure for this
group. Data demonstrates a three year (Sig+)
upward trend.

e The progress of pupil premium pupils is in line with
all pupils nationally.

e For reading, the progress of pupil premium pupils is
significantly higher (Sig+) than the national value
added figure for this group. Progress is above the
national average and above the school value added
for other pupils.

¢ In maths and writing progress is above the national
value added for this group and in line with the school
average for other pupils.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 12



COMMENTS ON PROVISION OF SERVICES E.G ANYTHING THAT YOU THINK COULD BE
IMPROVED OR DONE DIFFERENTLY ETC.

Strategies to ensure high performance by disadvantaged pupils

1. A school culture that believes that all pupils can achieve well. High expectations
exist for all pupils.

2. Recruitment and retention of high quality staff.

3. A staffing structure that supports the academic and pastoral care needs of pupils

eligible for pupil premium and actively seeks to remove barriers to learning.

4. Half-termly tracking of the performance of pupil premium pupils. Rigorous
tracking enables swift action to be taken to ensure pupils achieve well.

5. A wide and flexible range of intervention strategies to ensure staff are able to
meet individual pupils’ needs. This includes one to one booster sessions and
Easter and February schools.

6. All pupil premium pupils have end of year targets, approved by the head teacher
and shared with parents. Discussions with parents focus on the steps needed to
achieve these targets. Pupils know and understand these targets so that they
can be actively involved in their own learning and progress.

7. Regular evaluation of data by the head teacher, Elliot Foundation and local
governing body to ensure pupils are on track to succeed.

8. A curriculum that seeks to engage pupils, providing extra-curricular activities and
opportunities. The attendance and involvement of pupil premium pupils is
monitored carefully to ensure they take part in all activities and take advantage
of opportunities offered.

Areas of Improvement

1. The school benefits from a range of Council/Local Authority services to support
disadvantaged pupils. It would be helpful to have a school's directory of the
services offered and an indication of the trigger points for when schools could
access the services or sign post to parents experiencing difficulties with family
life.

2. At present, schools are not confident that they have accessed all the available
pupil premium money as they are dependent on information given by parents. Is
it possible for the Council to develop a system to access this information from
parents and link it in with admission to primary and secondary schools?

3. Some pupils are temporarily housed near the school. During this time children
become established in the school and start to make progress. It is therefore
concerning when children are re-housed in another area of the Borough and
have to move school and adjust to a new school. Valuable learning time is
missed in this period of readjustment. It is appreciated that it is a difficult area
and there are lots of factors to be considered. Could more be done to consider
the needs of children experiencing several moves?

4. Recruitment of teachers is becoming increasingly difficult. Teachers are leaving
the local area due to the high cost of housing. Brunel University provides well
trained teachers who are keen to teach in Hillingdon schools. However, when
these teachers decide to buy their own homes they often have to move out of the
local area and Hillingdon schools lose experienced teachers in whom they have
invested a significant amount of training in the early stages of their career.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL ASPIRATION FOR DISADVANTAGED
CHILDREN

WITNESS SUBMISSION

Name: Laurie Cornwell
Role: Executive Headteacher
Organisation: The Skills Hub and Young People’s Academy

SUMMARY OF THE ROLE OF YOUR SERVICE OR ORGANISATION

The Skills Hub is an alternative provision provider that caters for students that cannot attend
mainstream school for a variety of reasons; predominantly this may be due to permanent
exclusion, risk of permanent exclusion or medical barriers.

The Young People’s Academy is a special school for secondary aged students who have
Social, Emotional and Mental Health difficulties.

Both settings are holistic in their approach and wish to ensure that students leave with a set of
results that demonstrate the best of their abilities, are able to sustain relationships, maintain
households and hold down a job.

Both settings have unusually high numbers of FSM and LAC students.
OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

In both settings, NEET figures are extremely low or virtually none existent. Students are
provided with a wide range of access to internal and external services that support them as well
as their families.

COMMENTS ON PROVISION OF SERVICES E.G ANYTHING THAT YOU THINK COULD BE
IMPROVED OR DONE DIFFERENTLY ETC.

Due to National bench marking statistics, the achievements of these students are often
overlooked as the emphasis is on GCSE attainment figures and not necessarily on the
attainment and progress figures that are pertinent to them and their achievements.

As both the schools are small, there are times where they do not meet the same criteria that
mainstream school do for additional support. Of course, this can also be beneficial for other
funding streams that focus specifically on smaller schools and these types of settings.

Concerns around meeting thresholds for social services and CAHMS support is on-going and
has not been significantly addressed for a number of years.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda ltem 6

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SOCIAL CARE SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT

Contact Officer: Ana Popovici / Sarah Hydrie
Telephone: 01895 250498

REASON FOR ITEM

This report aims to provide a summary of the status of the CYPS Service Improvement
Plan as at April 2016. The Plan gives an overview of all of the key areas of activity and
details of the current stage of improvement work within Children and Young People Social
Care. Within the context of the Department’s overall plan, this paper sets out progress
against each work stream and our performance measures. In summary, the plan is
substantially completed and any outstanding actions will form part of the 2016/17 service
plan.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

It is recommended that the Committee notes the development of the Service Improvement
Plan and progress undertaken to date and comments as appropriate on the direction of
travel and pace of improvements within the service.

INFORMATION
Background

1. In March 2015, the Children's Social Care Services Improvement Plan (SIP) (refer
to appendices) was developed using the Transformation Children's Pathway work
streams. The SIP acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for
children within Hillingdon. It enhances the work already completed as part of the
Ofsted Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are
sustained and built upon. At the time, the service was characterised as having a
high turnover of staff, high caseloads and an inconsistent level of service delivery.
The main objective of the plan was, therefore, to stabilise the service by prioritising
recruitment, improving the service structure and delivering key statutory services to
a consistently high standard. The plan contained 7 work streams with performance
measures, milestones and key targets for each area of the Service, they are:

1) Workforce Development;

2) Improving Triage, MASH and Referrals & Assessment;

3) Improving social work practice within the Children’s Social Work Teams;

4) Improving outcomes for Looked After Children & Young People;

5) Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision;

6) Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements; and

7) Effective Quality Assurance.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 17



Quarterly Progress Summary

2. Since the last update to the Committee in October 2015 the service has been
progressing well to complete actions across all work streams. The table and graph
below summarise the progress which has been made since the Service
Improvement Plan was introduced in March 2015 across each of the 7 work
streams. Detailed narrative concerning progress against each outcome can be

found in Appendix 2.

Total No of . o
Actions Completed Static %o Completed
July 2015 52 Repprtmg mechgnlsm being developed to monitor progress
against each action

Oct 2015 52 25 0 48%
Jan 2016 52 40 0 77%

4™ April 0
2016 52 40 0 77%

Summary Table
Status of Actions by Work Stream
10 Il Completed
In progress
Il Static

25 ‘ | ‘
0
WS 1 ws 2 ws 3

Graph depicting actions by work stream

ws 4 WS 5

Work stream

WS 6 v

NS 7

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 18




3. Out of 52 actions in the Plan, 40 actions have been COMPLETED, 12 actions are

IN PROGRESS and 0 are STATIC. This shows that 77% of actions in the Plan have
been COMPLETED. The Assistant Director and Project Manager continue to meet
with Service Managers on a monthly basis to update, challenge and track progress
against the Plan. All remaining actions which have not been completed will be
tracked and monitored as part of the 2016/17 service plan. The graph shows that
progress since January to March has remained the same. Most of the actions which
are still ongoing are due to be completed by end of March / April 2016 and were still
being completed at the time of this report.

SIP 12 Month Progress Update

4. To provide a more detailed overview of the progress against each of the 7 work

streams, the SIP contains a measurement of progress at 6 months and at 12
months. Our progress at 6 months was reported to the Committee in October 2015.
The graph overleaf contains our progress against these measures at 12 months.
The graph follows the same principles as the Action Plan i.e. progress is measured
against a RAG rating which highlights whether an action is COMPLETED, IN
PROGRESS or STATIC. Detailed narrative concerning progress against each
outcome can be found in Appendix 3.

Tc:::i':: s°f Completed Static % Completed
th -
4 2(‘J°:Ip6rII 56 40 0 71%

Summary Table

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 19




SIP: 12 Month Status Update by Work Stream

12 Bl Completed

In progress
0 | I I I

Il Static
WSs1 Ws2 ws3 ws4 Ws 5 WS6 ws7

[

Work stream

Graph depicting actions by work stream

5. From the graph we can see that out of 56 projected outcomes, 40 are
COMPLETED, 16 are IN PROGRESS and 0 are STATIC. This shows that 71% of
actions in the Plan have been COMPLETED. Progress against these measures is
also discussed with Service Managers and is being scrutinised and tracked on a
regular basis. All remaining actions which have not been completed will be tracked
and monitored as part of the 2016/17 service plan.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. London Borough of Hillingdon Children's Social Care Improvement Plan 2015/16
(Appendix 1).

Children's Social Care Improvement Action Plan 2015/16 (Appendix 2).

12 month progress against Children's Social Care Improvement Plan 2015/16
performance measures (Appendix 3).

4. Glossary of terms used (Appendix 4).

wnN

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 20



APPENDIX 1

CSCS improvement plan

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL

London Borough of Hillingdon
Children's Social Care Services
Improvement Plan

2015-16

Version 1 final
March 2015

Page 21
LONDON www.hillingdon.gov.uk



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Contents

Version 1 final

1. Hillingdon’s vision for vulnerable children

2. Overarching priorities for 2015-16

3. Work streams

Work stream 1: Workforce development

Measurements of progress

Work stream 2: Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and CSWT

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of initial progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 3: Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurements of initial progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 4: Improving outcomes for LAC & Young People

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 5: Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 6: Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress

Work stream 7: Effective Quality Assurance

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Appendix 1 - Children's social care improvement action plan 2014-16

Page 22 Page 2 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

1. Hillingdon’s vision for vulnerable children

To deliver an outstanding Social Care Service for Hillingdon’s children and young people
in line with the Children’s Pathway work programme. With a greater focus on prevention
and getting it right through early support, Children's Social Care Services will focus on
offering accessible good quality support for those families that require specialist
interventions.

What does Hillingdon’s vision mean for children and families in social care?
Our vision is to ensure that every child and family who comes to our attention has:

Their needs and vulnerabilities assessed very quickly
Any risks children face are quickly identified, and are reduced as a result of our
involvement

e |f families need medium-long term support, this is done by a capable social worker who
has time to spend with them

e If we cannot achieve positive safe change for children in their family, we offer
additional specialist support and are clear about our responsibilities and their rights

e If children cannot live safely in their family, we work with the wider family to ensure
they remain within their community, and if this is not feasible we provide good quality
alternative homes on a permanent basis

e \We talk to and listen to children and families through our involvement and where
possible act on their concerns.

To achieve the vision, this plan has been developed using the Transformation Children’s
Pathway work streams. It outlines the priority areas of activity required to improve the
overall level of provision for children receiving services from social care. The plan also
acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for the children within
Hillingdon. This plan enhances the work already completed as part of the Ofsted
Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are sustained and built
upon.

In order to deliver this, Children's Social Care Services needs a stable workforce who are
capable of undertaking good quality assessments, offer defined interventions, engage with
families and partners, and deliver timely decision-making for children at critical points
across the Children’s Pathway.

This plan has the political, corporate and senior leadership needed to deliver the
improvements required. This plan will be monitored through the Senior Management
Team within Children and Young People's Services (CYPS) and overseen by the
Performance Monitoring Board chaired by the Chief Executive.

Accountability for delivery of the plan has primarily been devolved to Assistant Directors
who have responsibility for improving outcomes for their respective service areas.

Note - It is important to acknowledge that in August 2014 the level of risk in the Children's
Social Work Team (CSWT) was deemed to be unacceptably high. A significant additional

Page 23

Version 1 final Page 3 of 20



APPENDIX 1
London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan
amount of resource was committed to the service, coupled with the arrival of a new Senior
Management Team within CYPS. This Leadership team is now firmly focused on driving
forward service improvements.

2. Overarching priorities for 2015-16

e Deliver a successful recruitment plan coupled with the implementation of a flatter
management structure as part of a wider effective workforce plan to ensure good
practice management, training and supervision (see work stream 1 and 6).

e That the whole service maintains a relentless focus on good outcomes for children.

e Maintain good Triage, MASH, Social Work Teams to work with children and
families at an early stage to prevent the need for further intervention where possible
(see work streams 2 and 3).

e Deliver a range of good outcomes for LAC to be achieved through timely court
intervention, focused care planning, and good participation from children and young
people in their care planning (see work streams 4 and 5).

e Embed the Quality Assurance Framework to deliver good practice management,
oversight, and good casework practice throughout the service (see work stream 7).

e Ensure good value for money by getting the spend over 2015-16 for CYPS in line
with base budget, primarily by transitioning out of the Skylakes contract and
reducing the number of agency / interim staff across the social care workforce (see
work stream 1 and 6).

3. Work streams

There are 7 work streams that will deliver improvements to the specified services including
a cross cutting work stream 'embedding new ways of working and improved practice
management arrangements'. There are also interdependencies with projects led by
Residents Services and these are identified and acknowledged within the work streams.

The actions identified in the plan are developed to ensure successful embedding of
re-designed services through good social work practice. The plan's objective is to ensure
that changes implemented are sustainable in the longer-term. The high level work streams
that contain the specific actions that will deliver service improvement are:

Workforce development

Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and CSWT

Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs

Improving outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) and Young People
Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision

Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements

7. Effective Quality Assurance

2 o

Page 24

Version 1 final Page 4 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 1: Workforce development

a.

HR Workforce and Organisational Development are leading on developing a
Recruitment and Workforce Development plan. Improvements include the following:

Updated website to enable prospective applicants to have a good understanding of
what Hillingdon can offer and expectations of the role of a Social Worker.
Applicant packs to contain all relevant information and guidance when applicants
considering Hillingdon as their chosen workplace. Explanation contained in the
pack of supervision, POD work, support etc.

Recruitment process through to delivery to meet the needs of the service in line
with the improvement plan.

Induction process for every new worker to be embedded as standard practice, and
to achieve 100% compliance with current staff receiving a refresher induction to
update their knowledge.

AYSE support to be embedded, with clear standards and requirements set out to
encourage these newly qualified workers to remain in Hillingdon long-term.

Social Work Pathway to be embedded to ensure career structure is supporting
individual needs.

. The service is supporting this work stream. Improvements include the following:

Supervision structures to be embedded to ensure 100% compliance and delivery,
including recording and performance management processes to be clear and
robust in dealing with competency issues.

PADA reaches 100% completion on time and is robust in identifying current
practices of the worker, identifying learning needs and having a SMART
development plan to meet these needs.

Management development plan to be completed for all managers to support their
practice with clear measures of performance incorporated in their development plan
/ PADA.

Measurements of progress

See HR Recruitment and Workforce Development plan to avoid duplication.

Status of the work stream a: In implementation via HR’s Recruitment and Workforce
Development plan.

Status of the work stream b: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 25 Page 5 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 2: Performance improvement work in
Triage, MASH and CSWT

This is the current range of activities from the Children's Social Work Teams (CSWT) with
the support of the managed service Skylakes team. Which aims to stabilise the service by
reducing caseloads and reviewing all the Children In Need (CIN) cases. There is a focus
on closing cases where there has been little casework activity or making a clear plan for
social work intervention on these cases, and ensuring timely decisions for children across
the pathway. From November 2014, Skylakes will provide a referral / intake team for all
new social care cases, and will ensure that they have an appropriate assessment within
agreed timescales. The CSWT will work with cases post assessments and will use the
additional capacity provided by Skylakes to review and reduce cases that have been in
the service for a number of months.

Outcomes of the work stream

All children accessing targeted social work services will receive a consistent and timely
assessment intervention by:

Improved and consistent decision-making by the Triage and MASH teams.
Caseloads are to the standard level and in line with current resource capacity.

Best Value is obtained from Skylakes team in that they deliver to contract showing
consistent good performance and to an acceptable practice standard.

No case to be open without a plan for over 6-8 weeks within the service.

In 2015-16 a feasible benchmark of case duration for CIN and CP (Child Protection)
will be able to be set, as well as step up and step down targets.

Measurement of initial progress (6 months)

e Performance data showing an appropriate level of contacts and consistent conversion
rate to referrals into Social Care.

e Performance data - weekly target to reduce overall CIN cases by 25 (see model of
impact on CIN cases), with weekly meetings with managers to review performance
against target. Data-set has been designed to show CIN case trajectory across all
teams including Skylakes.

e Service undertakes regular supervision audits and PADA reviews. (Residual Ofsted
action).

e Contract oversight - Performance Indicators are set and regular meetings are held on
risks and issues. Partnership framework is established.

e Caseloads in the CSWTs to be in line with London AD standards document (average
15 for Duty and Assessment staff, 18 for CP / CIN and 14 for LAC).

This work stream’s initial success will form the baseline to re-establish the Children's
Pathway and will be a critical factor in staff re-engagement.

Measurements of progress (12 months)
e Audits and data indicating consistent decision-making from Triage and Mash.

Page 26

Version 1 final Page 6 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

There will be an increase in families stepping down at key points in social care (at
contacts, post assessment and during CP / CIN work).

All assessments to be completed within timescales. (Residual Ofsted Action).

Audits of assessment indicate good quality, child’s voice, and leading to quicker and
better decision-making. (Residual Ofsted Action).

CIN families remain in the service for an average of 5 months with the vast majority
stepping down to early support.

CP families remain in the service for 9-12 months with two thirds stepping down to
early support and a third being stepped up.

Pre-proceedings work will be delivered in an average of 12-14 weeks.

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s
vision for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 27 Page 7 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 3: Defining new ways of working within
the CSWTs

This work stream will review and improve the current operating model in order to realign
the CSWT service with the Children's Pathway and strengthen the prevention model.
Activities include:

e Ultilising Skylakes to act as a referral and assessment team to explore if such an
addition to the pathway model would maintain the improvements expected.

e Embed consistent thresholds in Triage and MASH in line with the Children's Pathway,
and ensure these are tightly defined and managed.

e To understand and plan demand at key points from Triage to Permanency (service
demand flow map).

e Triage to work with the Single Point of Contact project (being led by Residents
Services - interdependency).

e To focus on improving practice in key Ofsted priority areas: assessment, chronology,
timeliness of decisions, and interventions for children.

e Define a private Fostering service with dedicated resource, and plan to increase
referrals, and ensure all statutory regulations are met.

e Bring the specialist parenting assessment service into the current structure, expand its
remit to include interventions, evaluation and increase work-flow, in line with new
target for pre-proceedings work.

e Update transfer protocol to ensure consistent and smarter transfer process.

e Quality Assurance of process to ensure best practice and the voice of the child
remains at the centre of our work with each family.

e \Working with the whole service to promote a structured and sound service delivery
model that is clearly understood by all and achievable in its implementation.

e Achieve stability by recruiting permanent staff in a phased manner throughout the year,
implement new social work pathways and wider workforce planning (see separate
recruitment plan).

e Focused work with the QA service including commissioning of training on good
chronologies and assessment.

e Focused training and site bites on good quality assessments, chronologies (Residual
Ofsted Action).

e Introduce Domestic Violence tools (CADA / Matrix) as part of assessment. (Residual
Ofsted Action).

e Agree the future for the Parenting Assessment Service and work flow.

e Review the service model for asylum children aligned with wider transformation and
funding arrangements.

e Snapshot of Emergency Duty Team to scope any issues and risks.
Page 28

Version 1 final Page 8 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Outcomes of the work stream

Integration of the Skylakes resource into the Children’s Pathway to deliver a service
as well as release capacity for the CSWT to focus on performance improvement.

Improved through-put of work from referral to social care planning to permanency,
with a clear focus on legal planning and pre-proceedings work (Early Intervention,
CIN, CP, LAC or Children’s Pathway).

Effective response to children and young people with clear outcomes that are
achievable and timely.

Good engagement with families in order for them to understand and take
responsibility to promote change and in turn safeguard their own children.

Implement the agreed recruitment plan and implement workforce planning.

Measurements of initial progress (6 months)

Version 1 final

Skylakes and Hillingdon are able to embed a referral and assessment team that
delivers early outcomes, and evidently contributes to the reduction of caseloads
through CSWT1 and CSWTH1, by creating capacity in these teams to close, step
down and progress casework. The evaluation will feed into any further work on the
Children’s Pathway.

A service demand flow map including demand and capacity will be established to
ensure there is appropriate capacity at key points in the Children’s Pathway.

The resource is flexed and aligned with the transitional approach and dependent on
recruitment.

Private Fostering lead is identified, project group is set up, audit of current cases
are completed with learning.

The Parenting Assessment Service staff are brought into the Hillingdon structure,
the remit is expanded with the placing of the specialist Mental Health Worker.
There is an increase in Legal planning meetings, with an increase in families in
pre-proceedings in line with making timely decisions for children.

Case transfer panel is established, transfer check list (good practice) is used and
cases are transferred at agreed points more consistently.

Improvement in timeliness of assessments completed.

A focused improvement project on assessment and chronology.

Number of complaints will reduce and response time will improve.

Partners feedback will be sought.

Monthly case audits will have 100% compliance.

We will meet our statutory obligations for the privately fostered children in the
Social Work Service.

Recruitment of first line managers is effective as we reduce 100% current agency
staff in management positions to 40% or less.

Aslyum and parenting assessment teams better defined.

Page 29 Page 9 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Percentage of work judged good or better - 35% by the end March 2015, 50% by
end September 2015, 80% by end March 2016.

Private fostering referrals will increase.

Audit of decision-making at front door and to ICPC (test thresholds) is planned for
April 2015, which will give us up to date position re. consistency and areas for
further improvement.

Training roll out on assessments.

All chronologies completed and of good quality.

For families in pre-proceedings we work to a 12-14 week timescale to deliver more
timely decisions for children.

The timeliness and quality of assessments improve and this is evidenced by audits,
feedback, staff feedback, supervision audits and timely step downs / step-ups.
There will be an established mechanism to seek service user feedback, and
findings will be part of the learning framework for staff.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 30 Page 10 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 4: Improving outcomes for Looked After
Children & Young People

To ensure the Children in Care (CIC) teams are stabilised to deliver caseloads at a
manageable level, which will assist in the implementation of good social work practice. A
range of good outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) to be achieved through timely
court intervention, focused care planning and good participation from children and young
people in their care planning. The work stream will therefore ensure that there is full and
effective implementation of the Public Law Outline (PLO) that will see all children achieve
a final care order and permanency plan within 26 weeks. All statutory requirements will be
met and audits will provide evidence of good service user engagement within their care
planning.

Outcomes of the work stream

e All LAC cases will be allocated to ensure they receive good permanent outcomes
within 12-18 months (return home, long term fostering, adoption, SGO (Special
Guardianship Orders), connected persons).

e All cases will be worked as a 'whole service' with social workers coordinating
interventions from the virtual school, designated health professionals, and other key
agencies (SDQ , LAC reviews, LAC visits, PEPs, Health Assessments).

e Improve the LAC journey to make it more timely and embed good practice within the
CIC and Young Person’s Teams.

e Review the role of the Court Progression Officer to ensure all court proceedings to be
concluded within the 26 week time scale (unless in exceptional circumstances the care
process is extended by the Court).

All care leavers will have a pathway plan and good EET and housing outcomes.
Improve the level of engagement and consultation with LAC through better practice
and roll out of Viewpoint to all LAC to involve them in their care planning.

This work stream's success will form the baseline to re-establish the Children's Pathway
and will be a critical factor in staff re-engagement.

Measurement of progress (6 months)

e Performance data - weekly target to allocate all LAC cases, meet statutory
reviewing and visiting targets, with weekly meetings with managers to review
performance against target.

e Health, education and placement outputs demonstrate good outcomes for LAC.

e Monthly PLO reporting against 26 week target - continue to reduce number of
'legacy cases' to final hearing and conclude proceedings. Ensure all current work
started since October 2014 is concluded within 26 weeks.

e Successful interim recruitment to all social work and team manager posts and
caseloads to be within the range of 14-16 cases per qualified social worker.

Page 31

Version 1 final Page 11 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Measurements of progress (12 months)

e Average caseloads remain within 14-16 cases per qualified social worker.

e All LAC cases allocated and children and young people have their statutory
requirements met.

e 80% of audits and data indicating good with evidence of consistent decision-making in
care planning and timely outcomes within the CIC teams.

e All Public Law Outline cases will be completed within 26 weeks (unless specified by
the Court).

e 100% of care leavers will have a pathway plan with clear objectives
e Performance will be top quartile for EET and housing outcomes.

e 80% of audits of care plans indicate good quality, child’s voice and leading to quicker
and better decision-making.

e Looked After Children receive good outcomes within 12-18 months (return home, long-
term fostering, adoption, SGO, Connected Persons).

e All pre-proceedings work will be delivered in an average of 14 weeks.

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s
vision for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Page 32

Version 1 final Page 12 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 5: Improving the quality of Fostering &
Adoption provision

To change the current operating model in order to realign the Fostering & Adoption
services with the Children's Pathway, to deliver good and stable placement provision and
permanency outcomes for LAC. The work stream will ensure that the service has sufficient
numbers of placements to provide stable, secure and safe placements for children and
young people who are looked after. The service will also deliver extra support to post
permanence to ensure successful outcomes for those children in adoption, placed under
SGOs (Special Guardianship Orders) and long-term foster placements. Activities include:

e Prototype the 'managed service project' (provided by Coram & HCL) to allocate all
backlog and new carer assessments until the end of May 2015, and to ensure no drift
or further backlogs within the service.

e Evaluate the ‘managed service’ project to consider if such a model can be adapted or
expanded to deliver and maintain the improvements expected from the initial project,
which will include measuring the difference in performance (quality of assessments
and improved throughput) between managed service prototypes and Hillingdon's
service.

e Use the evaluation to plan for demand at key points within the Fostering and Adoption
service and implement a ‘best value’ placement service for the LAC model.

e Implement strong management oversight and evidence of improved permanence
outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon.

e Arrange staff and carer workshops to ensure full consultation and explore staff
experience and views of current operating model, possible changes and proposals.

e Improved QA assurance and independent review of carers in line with national
standards and good practice.

e Improve the management and coordination of the Adoption & Fostering Panel.

Outcomes of the work stream

e Allocation and completion of all outstanding assessments and new assessments
coming into the service between the start of December 2014 and end of May 2015,
through the implementation of the prototype managed service.

e Deliver top quartile adoption and permanence outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon.
e Increase in the number of good quality Hillingdon foster placements available to LAC.

e Reduce the number of Independent Foster Agency (IFA) placements used by LAC in
Hillingdon.

e Sufficient good quality permanent placements options (return home, long-term
fostering, adoption, SGO, connected persons) for LAC children in Hillingdon.

e Improve the number of LAC placed within their own community (inside 20 mile radius).

Page 33

Version 1 final Page 13 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Timely administration and management of the Panel process.

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Implementation of the 'managed service project' (provided by Coram & HCL) to
allocate all assessment activity as outlined in the project above.

Performance data - weekly target to allocate all carer assessments within statutory and
good practice guidance.

Re-design the service structure to meet the new service model requirements.

Improved permanent placement outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon - improvement in the
performance as measured by the national adoption score card.

Reduction in the number of children moved further than 20 miles from their home
address to minimum - less than 10% of LAC (36).

QA framework provides evidence of good quality social work practice on all
assessments undertaken by Coram (80% judged good or better and no inadequate).

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Fully implement the new service model and ensure fully staffed.

Maintain allocation of all assessments to meet national standards of quality and
timeliness - 100% within timescale.

Audits and data indicating consistently good quality analysis of assessments and
timely presentation to Panel (80% good or better and no inadequate judgements).

Number of in-house foster placements to increase to 110 by April 20116.
The proportion of IFA placements to be less than 40%.

Reduction in the number of children moved further than 20 miles from their home
address to minimum - less than 10% of LAC (36).

Looked After Children receive good outcomes within 12-18 months (return home, long-
term fostering, adoption, SGO, Connected Persons).

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s
vision for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 34 Page 14 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 6: Embedding new ways of working and
improved practice management arrangements

To improve the overall standard of practice and social work intervention across Children’s
Social Care Services. The aim is to deliver effective, timely and safe service interventions
for the most vulnerable children in our community. This will include the strengthening of
practice management arrangements and the level of professional supervision, training and
guidance offered to all social work staff. The service will improve the level of practice
through consistent management oversight, and practice recording on Protocol electronic
recording system. Activities will include:

e To support better outcomes the staffing model and any changes to be aligned with
delivery demand (service demand flow map).

e To support best practice the staffing and casework model will provide stable and
balanced (represented by the London ADs work on Standards as well as Hillingdon's
view of average caseloads minus one).

e To ensure good management oversight and support of good practice, achieve a flatter
structure to deliver clearer accountability by expanding the number of team managers
with small (maximum 6) teams of social workers.

e Invest in expert advanced practitioner roles in line with the Munro principle to build
practice capability at the point of delivery.

e Invest in staff professional development and clearer alignment with service
requirements.

e All changes to be made with transparency, consultation and care.

Outcomes of the work stream

This will deliver a social work structure built around a model of one team manager with a
maximum of 6 social workers to supervise. This will strengthen accountability for good
practice within the teams and will maintain the POD structure. This model will also invest
in the advanced practitioner role to work with the QA service to improve practice quality,
and offer practice leadership in line with the POD model. It will be aligned with workforce
planning and have clear social work pathways with an embedded training needs analysis.

Effective accountability and management oversight of practice improvement activity.
Measurement of progress

e Simplified practice management structure in place - April 2015.

e The average case load across the service remains at or below 18 per qualified
social worker (in accordance with the service requirement's).

e All social workers receive regular monthly supervision.

Page 35

Version 1 final Page 15 of 20



APPENDIX 1
London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan
e Monthly QA audit report - percentage of work judged good or better - 35 % by end
March 2015, 50% by end September 2015, 80% end March 2016.

e Performance data - weekly target to allocate all CIN, CP and LAC cases, meet
statutory reviewing and visiting targets, with weekly meetings with managers to
review performance against target. In 2015-16 a feasible benchmark of case
duration for CIN and CP will be able to be set, as well as step up and step down
targets, and we should achieve the 26 week proceedings target to ensure more
timely decisions for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Page 36

Version 1 final Page 16 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 7: Effective Quality Assurance

The work stream will ensure the full and effective implementation of the QA Framework,
embedding a consistent approach to improving the quality of practice to ‘good’ as a norm
and better outcomes for children. To ensure demonstrable measurable outcomes for
children and their families with all performance information linked into effective
mechanisms for achieving change. The QA framework will support managers to have a
strong oversight of the practice and outcomes within their teams. Activities include:

e Implementation of the new QA Framework by 1st April 2015.

¢ Collation and analysis of Quality Assurance systems across the service,
incorporating improvements achieved through good practice and learning to inform
future planning and promote improvement. This will include:

Court Tracker

Fostering Panel Advisor

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Prevention Manager
MASH process

Transfer and allocation process

Practice Development Mentor role

Dispute resolution process

O O O O O o o

e Embedding and improving the Signs of Safety CP Conference process to ensure
consistent multi agency involvement with SMART plans being achieved.

e Implementation of effective Independent Reviewing Service developing a robust
constructive challenge, mid-point reviewing and dispute resolution process.

e Implementation of tracking and improving completion of all CP Conferences and
LAC reviews to be completed within statutory timescales.

¢ Voice of the child being evident throughout CP and LAC processes through
relaunch of Viewpoint by April 2015.

e Review and implementation of new ways of working within the Local Safeguarding
Children’s Board (LSCB) ensuring consistent and robust multi agency responsibility
and ownership.

e Implementation of Practice Standards in each area of the service to support
workers in defining their role and expectations that are clearly promoted.

e Development of the Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) Service
across Hillingdon supported by the MOPAC initiative, following review by the end of
July 2015. To include areas of support being increased in MASH, Housing and
Health.

e Development of the YIDVA (Young People’s IDVA service) to ensure peer on peer
abuse is tackled consistently.

e FGC (Family Group Conference) Service will be developed to offer FGCs at any
point along the CYPS Social Care continuum to prevent case escalation and further
statutory intervention.

Page 37

Version 1 final Page 17 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Development of a CSE Strategy, Missing Person & Runaway Protocol to be
implemented by the end of March 2015. Using learning from a recent joint
operation with the Metropolitan Police which led to a successful conviction, and
developing the new role of Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention. A local CSE
strategy addressing CSE in Hillingdon which consists of key strategic objectives in
line with 'Pan London Operating Protocol' to include multi agency partners.

Outcomes of the work stream

An approach orientated around outcomes rather than processes will support
practice managers to embed scrutiny and practice learning from audit into daily
supervision and management in a rigorous way.

Improved QA Framework that drives improvement and learning across the service
promoting Individual, Team and Service Development Plans.

Evidence of good practice models identified and implemented across the service as
appropriate.

A robust Reviewing Service that quality assures consistently promoting good
practice and challenging practice areas that require improvements.

The child's journey is evident that their views are considered in all aspects of
decision making.

Structure and professional membership of the LSCB will be appropriate and will
drive improvements in multi agency working across Hillingdon.

A robust and effective IDVA / YIDVA service that works with all services providing
support in areas of domestic abuse, thus responding and sharing skills to address a
wider cross section of Hillingdon in a more collaborative way.

FGC will reach prevent step up or escalations of concerns by targeting lower level
case work.

A 'CSE strategy' to be progressed to enable all professionals to develop confidence
and practice when identifying and responding to CSE concerns.

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Version 1 final

Launch the new QA Framework in April 2015.

Percentage of work judged good or better - 35% by the end March 2015, 50% by
end September 2015.

Monthly Quality Assurance findings will drive improvement across the service
developing clear action plans that are SMART.

CP Conferences and LAC reviews are completed within statutory timescales (95%)
LSCB responsibility in relation to safeguarding will be evidenced through audit and
findings each quarter.

Implement Dispute Resolution Process with appropriate outcomes achieved in
relevant timescales that improve outcomes for children and young people.
Implementation of Mid-point Reviews for care plans and child protection plans.
Viewpoint will see increased response to completing and evidencing child's views
at specific meetings and assessments and providing feedback on the quality of
practice.

Page 38 Page 18 of 20



APPENDIX 1
London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

o |IDVA service performance measures will indicate an improved and more targeted
service.

e Higher rate of FGC referrals and good outcomes to prevent escalation to tier 3
services or becoming looked after.

e Development of CSE data in order to measure the level of concerns in line with
national and local trends, with clear targets to be measured with the 'action plan’
being reviewed quarterly and timescales measured against effectiveness. An
annual review with new targets set as required. An action plan progress update to
be reported to the LSCB board twice annually.

Measurement of progress (12 months)

e Fully embedded QA Framework.

e Percentage of audit compliance 100%.

e 80% of audits indicate good quality practice and evidence of the child’s voice in all
assessments and plans by end of March 2016.
80% of all social work judged good or better by end of March 2016.
Structured Review of Performance and Monthly Quality Assurance findings will
continue to drive improvement across the service developing clear action plans that
are SMART.
Fully embedded Mid-point Review and Dispute Resolution Process
100% of all CP Conferences and LAC reviews are completed within statutory
timescales.

e 100% of CSE cases tracked and all have effective risk assessments and plans
recorded.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Page 39

Version 1 final Page 19 of 20



APPENDIX 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Appendix 1 - Children's social care improvement action
plan 2014-16

See separate action plan.

Page 40

Version 1 final Page 20 of 20



~

%0 | %ee | %.9 abejueoiag
JaquinN
| ss°-Bo4d ull paje|dwiod 91/510Z 404 SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS
siebeuew
J194} yyim sue|d yuswdojanap juswabeuew aja|dwod o} siebeuely a21AIsS ||V -
$90IN0SaJ S,UBJP|IYD
siebeuepy wea] Jo poyoo jusuewad g Aousuewlad ‘Q10 AV [VAVd / ueld Juswdojaasp Jiay} ui pajesodiooul souewiopad
B} JO JuBW)INIOAI [NJSSB00NS BUIMOJ|O} ‘4 JOLIENTD Ul SOUSILIOD [|IM pue siobeuew uoissa.iBouid 1oa1eo pue| uejd Juswdojerap Juswabeuew pue JO sainseaw Jeajo yum aonoeld Jiay) poddns o) siabeuew
ssaiboud uj |le Jo} (euuad wouj) pauoissIwwod usaq sey Buluies) Juswdojanap juswabeuely -|  Hoddns jo ueld Jesjo e aney siabeuew ||y B aABY 0} s1ebeuew Jo %001 | 9102/¥0/10 | S10Z/0/10 | Buipsenbajes s,uaipiyd Qv |le 1o} payajdwos aq o} ueld yuswdojanap Juswabeuep| 61
(yusueuwad
10 Aouabe) JuswAojdwa Jo s)eaM OM] ISIl) BY) UIYIM Bululesy pue uoionp uona|dwod %00} sayoeal yavd ‘ue|d uofoe Sy} yum
VaVd peAieoal eney siebeuew Buisiaadns jey) insus o} siebeuB 80IAISS || - aul| ut ajos Aq sanuoud pajoadxa $90IN0SaJ S,UdJP|IYD Spaau asay) Josw
‘jjo paubis usaq aAeY SYAVd| 9AeY |IIM yolym ‘aoeld ul yavd » Aousuewuad Q10 AV 0} ueld Juswdojanap | HYINS e Buiney pue spasu Buiules)
910z |udy ul ueys Jey} 2INsUS 0} UsyeHapun ale s30ayD| e aABY ale) [e100S UaIp|iyD ul pue Buikuapi ‘Jexi0m ay) Jo saonoeld Juaind Buikjuapl
ssaiboid uj| 0} anp ale SMaIASI [ENUUE PUE € JSUEND) JOAO 99E|d 300} SMAIAS) YAV Yluow g - ‘Jje)s ||e 0} 30 pajj0l 8q 0} s}eblIe) YAV d el 31om [e100s [le 10z AW Ad| 91.0Z/70/10 | SL0Z/#0/10 | BulpienBajes s usipiyd dy| Ul isnqol S| pue awi uo uone|dwod %00} seyoesl yavd| 8’1
(did) ssauonnoeid
juswanoidw] sonoeld ayy Aq papoddns aoe(d Buiye} suoisintedns qOd Aybiupod -
J10}08.1( JUE)SISSY By} pue siabeuely 901AI9S UsaMIa] PasSNOSIp
s abeddijs Aue pue siseq Ajyjuow e UO PaIO}UOW B¢ O} SANUIUOD SIY] "SuoisiAIedNns
Jo AiaAijap 8y} yim Juenjdwiod %/ Sem 801AI8S 8y} 91.0Z G2 1Y "Siseq Ajyjuow e
UO palojuow pue Yejs ||e 1o} ade|d Ul JaxoEel} uoisiAJadns pue siabeuepy Wes| mau
10} SN0} JES|D PUE UOIJELIBA S9)BJISUOWISP UYDIYM Jaxoe) UoisiAiadns pajuswajdw -
(yusuewulad Jo
Aouabe) Juswholdwa Jo syeam om} Isily By} ulyIm B 1) puB uononpul uoisiAJadns
panieoal eney siebeuew Buisiniedns jey) painsue aaey siebeuely 80IM8S IV -
Aolod
uoisiazadng s,uopBulliH Yim aul ut Jejs o} uoisiasadns apiaoid o} siebeuew ||y - $90IN0SAI S,UBIP|IYD sanssi Aouajedwoo yym Buijesp ui
>o__on_ uoisinedng  Aousuewlad ‘1D QY [ISNqol pue Jeajo aq 0} sasseoo.d Juswabeuew souewlopad| Y
b buQ s)ipne aopoeld senbai Aq pajuswsiddns si 3| "SJAD Ssoioe pajuswa|d uopb uolsiaiadns Jo Aianliep pue pue Buipiooal Buipnjoul ‘A1aaljep pue soueldwod <H
pajsjdwo pue padojanap usaq sey |00} Jipne pue Bulojuow uoisiriadns aaisusyaidwod v - Ayienb poob ‘Ajawiy mc_>_89 yes Iy ay ul souedwo) %001 | G102 1deS | 5L0zZ/¥0/10 | Buipsenbajes s uaipiyd Ay %001 @INsua 0} pappaqua aq 0} $aInjonJis uoisiniedng Llg
ssa00.d Juswyinioal sy} ajey|ioe) o} pasn Aemuyjed Jaaied maN - e
paystjqejse
paJay swwelboud Juawyinioas ayy jo ped se pajuswajduw dV Pue \\S ‘MSON|  Aemuyjed soaleo e aaey sjsod spaau [enpiAlpul Buioddns st ainjonuys O
pajajdwio pue padojerap usaq aAey sjsod pajeb.e) Joy Aemyyed 19a1e0 Mau ay ] - 0sap qol pue a|yoid qof pamauay %149 0g1|a®14q 0gl asi 1981B0 BINSUS 0} pappaquia aq o} Aemuyied 3o [eoos| o) |
awwelboid ayy ybnoiyy
way} poddns pue swweiboid sy} 0} JobeuBW BUI|/IOSSSSSE JI9Y) PUB WaY) S}onpul
SUS puE I0JeulpJood JASY Sy} OS|E S| aJeD [e100S 10} JaoljO Juswdojersq pue 20Jopiom
Buiuiea ay) ‘swwelboid JASY SY) OJUO [0IUS SISIOA [BID0S Palend) AMaN [V -[3|qels e ajealo pue siebeuew ainny moub o)
Ayunpoddo Bupyesio pue ‘uopbuliy ul sysod wua)-Buol uoph Ul Ulewal 0} SI19¥Iom
6 0 ISAV| Je3i0m [epoos Jusuewuad dn Bupje} SMSON| Jeye sieak z ‘sisod siom [e1o0s payilenb Apmau asay abein0ouS 0} 10 J8s sjuswalnbal
pajajdwo 0} Joddns Jo Jajjo padueyua pue payipow e sapnjoul swwesfoid uononpur 8y ] -|ul Bunnsas swwelboid JASY plepuels ybiH ul ulewas SMSON J0 %001 | BuoB-ug | 510z/€0/S1L asl PUE SpIEPUE)S JESID YIIM ‘Pappaquid aq o} Joddns ISAY| G'L
paonposul Sem 1 9ouls A|Ipea)s asealoul
0} SeMU09 sajeba|ap Jo Jaquinu 8y} Jng SOUBPUS)E UO pajoedull SABY SJUSW)ILILIOD
sjom Ajioud JISASMOH "PaJIAUL USS] SABY SISXIOM MBU %001 GLOZ Uer 90Ul -
abpajmouy
awwelBoid ay) ojuo Jejs Bunsixe Buiyooq siabeue|y woly 1o sseoold wio4 J18y) ayepdn o} uononpul Jaysalal e BuIAIgoal Jje)s JusLno
BuiobuQ SIa)ie}S MaN 8y} ybnoayy puspe o) sajebajep sjoadxa / SajAUI puE Yuow A1ans swwelboud uononpul Y)im 2oueldwod %00} dASIYOE O} pue ‘sonoeld plepue)s
pajejdwo sunJ swweJboid 8y "GLOZ uer ul payoune| sem swwe.boid uoyonpul Aep v - pejonpul Jess |Iy| pepushe sisxJom meu Jo %001 | Bulob-uo | 510z/L0/L0 asl SE pappaquie aq 0} Jax}Jom mau AieAs Joj ssed0id uononpul| |
pamainal Buiaq
Apuauno ale suoneoldde 6z pue pasolo AjJusoal SABY SJUSWSSILGAPE g 9Seyd -
uona|dwod Bulieau s| saloueoeA Juswabeuely
0} JUBW}INIO8) $18GOJ0Q0 Ul PapN|oU0d UBIeduWED JusWyINIoal 8y} JO | 8Seyd -
Japea] ay) Aq paaibe ue|d uonisueld] - 90INIBS By} IM Jusuewlad 0} %G8
pajepdn s1}oblie] "90IAI8S U} UIUIM SIDHMIOM [2100S Jopean ued Juawanoidwi Y} Yym aul| Ul 801AI9S 3y} JO
yeys wiad Jo % [ssaiboad uj (saxjelAxs Buipnjoxa) %9, O} uask sey yejs wiad Jo o Juauno ay] -|  Aouebe o} yusueuwuad jo ones ayy anoidwi| ey Aq peaibe ueld uomsuel] [ 910z/€0/L0 | §10Z/SO/LO oH spaau ay} 198 0} Alanljap 0} yBnoy) sseoold Juswyinoay| €|
*,uopBul|iH e 19a1eo |euoissajoid *0}e poddns ‘yiom gOd ‘uolsintedns
InoA mouB, 0} S19xJoM [e100S BYIAUI [|IM oM pue ubiedwed Juawyinioas ay) u obessaw Jo yoed ayj ul paulejuod uoneue|dx3 “aoe|ds oM UBSOYD
painay Japea] J1ay) se uopbh Buuapisuod syuedldde uaym aouepinb
pajajdwo J1031e2 Bululep Apes|o padojonsp Usaq SBY a|110id GOr JOYIOA [BID0S Mau /| ey Aq peaiBe ueld uonisuel] [jun pjoy uo YH A9 0491|5102/20/L0 | SL0Z/¥0/L0 HH PUE UONBWLIOJUI JUBASISI |[E UIBIUoD 0) syoed jueoiddy| z'|
‘|lounod syy
SSOJOB JUSWI)INIOAI JAY)O 10} Pash aq Jaje [IM YDIYm ,a)is-0Joluw, JO [elod juswyinioal
M3U B UO PaJEDIUNWOD 3q [|IM S| “Uolelaunuwal 9Aladwod pue [apow
Kianijep ‘uonoalIp ‘'s8sSa09NS S [1DUN0Y 8y} Bunenoipe Alesjo uoyisodoid Buons JSMIOAN [BIOOS B JO 9|04 BU} JO SUOHE}OSdXD
YD B euuad ypum dojanap |jim am Ajleniu| *,pueiq Juswhojdws, pue Jayo ued uopbuljiH yeym jo Buipuejsiepun poob
pajajdwo uo Buissnao4 Buneylew Juswyinioal Ul asijenads oym euuad Yim pjay sbunesiy| sunuo pue pajepdn sysgem g0z 1des Ag |euoiouny a)sgam maN | 91.02/€0/10 | SL0Z/70/L0 HH e aney o} sjuedldde aAoadsold s|qeus oy ajsqam ayepdn| 1)
um%a_‘wwm_w_m:o 7 snjejg suonoy - ssaiboid sjabie] Aoy pue so ..:mmww.._mO_\“m%n_-_:_ﬁE Jlopag | EAPUT | Sleq pelg pea uopoy 19y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

juawdo|aAa( 8210PIOM : | WEdIISHIOM



OV pue 49 Jo}
PaJed0|[E 3IOM %00] "9[B9SaWI} 0} Pa}o|dIOD SJUSISSASSE JO % /6
*Aemuapun uol)suel} ypm pappaquia Ajjn} si [spow sayelAys ay] -

(2'Z 01 49401) SVH HET OjuI UoNISUE.) pasade) e S| asay] -

syjuow
M3} }X8U 8} JOA0 pajoadxa JOBIUOD JO UMOP UNyY (SDQA) S8dIAI8S
s,ualp|iyD Jo J0joaulq Aq j0aloid Jo malAal [N "papPaqIS SAXEIANS -

paysiiqeisa
s1 spomawely diysIsuped 'Sanss| pUe Sysli uo pjay aie sBunesw
Je|nBas pue }8s SJe SI0JEDIPU| SOUBLLIONAY JYBISISA0 JoBHUOD -

BuiobuQ -

pajajdwon

“(Aemyred

s,ualp|iyD 10 Qv ‘dD ‘NID ‘uonuanisiu| Aie3) suom sbuipssosoid
-a1d pue Buiuued [eba| uo snooy Jeajo e yum ‘Aousueuwnsad oy
Buluueld a1eo [e100S 0} [eLI8)a1 WOy HJom jo Indybnoiyy paroisdw -

‘saledsawl} ulyyIm

Apuanbauy aow paje|dwoo Bulaq yiom mau pue sasea ,bopjoeq,
JO UOIONPAI AU} Ul USSS 8( ||IM SHNSAY "SWES} YIOM [e100S dU}
sainssaid sjeing||e |im saxe|Ays Aq papiroid Ayoedeo pappe ay] -

'S10JE0IPUI JO JUSIBABIYOE SMOYS PUE PaJE||00 S| Bjep 0UBWLIOMad -
‘pjey aue sBuesw senssi pue sysii Jenbay -

"pe0INOsal PUe PaySI|qe}sa SI 8IAISS JUBSUSSSSSY -

"SUjUOW g JOj YI0M [e100S AIOJNJe}s O} paLIajaI-al Jou
pue 901AI9s Alojnje)s e 9A190) Jobuo| ou saljiwey 9, -

*$AEP G UIuIM DI JO %00) BulisAleq -

‘Juswssasse Jad sAep Qg Jo abelane ue yym
Xew SABp Gi UIYJIM SJUSLUSSSSSE JO %001 Buuaale( -

"pPodU Ul UBIP|IYD ||B JO SjUSLISSasSe pue syse} Ainp
losElIapUN (1M JeY) 90IAI8S AN Yoam G e Bunuawaldu| -

:paaAIlep

pue paaibe s| |opow AJaAl|ap pue sio}edipu| Aay

ale) [e100g

9102/¥0/L0 | #L0Z/LL/LO | SU8IPIYD AV

piepuejs
aonoe.d a|qejdadoe ue o) pue
@ouewlopad poob jus)sisuod Buimoys
J0BIJU0D 0} JOAIIBP ABY} JBy} Ul wes)
soxe|ANS WOy pauleqo si anjep jsag

Ve

sl JuaNbasgns 1o PUodSS Ueld dO B UO UIP|IYD JO %01 -

%61 Je S| 8}l [eLBjeI-8l B} 907 G4 JO pus ¥
%81 Je SI 91l [e1Ia}o1-a1 8U} €D JO PUS BU} IV -

ul

%.6 Sem a|easaw

%86 Sem djeosawi}

%26 SEM 8]EOSBWI} UIY}IM JNO POLLIED SJUSLUSSASSE - G0 1dog

%¥9 SeM S9|BOSBWI) UIYIM JNO PBLLIED SJUBWISSSSSE - 1|07 }dog
:SUMOP-da}s JO % PUE B[EDSBLUI UIY}M JNO PSLLIED SIE SJUSLISSOSSY -

IM JNO paLlIed sjuswssesse - 91.0¢ Je|N
M N0 palled sjuswssasse - GLOZ 99

SOMEIANS UNM JOBIUOD INO
VTl pus pue asnoy-ul swesy 1 ||e Buliq o) ueid am awi} yoiym Ag “syjuow
CEEICITELY Moy jxau au) ul saye|AyS wouy Aeme anow o) aoe|d ul ueld Jojsuel] -

1061} %02
-G ‘aWI} puodas e ue|d e 0} }0lqns ualp|iyd pue d)jel [eL)el-aY -

(sexeIANS) Sy Buluogouny -

"SyjUOW g Joj YIoMm [e100s AIONje)s 0} paLiajal-al
JoU pue ad1AI8s AIOJnje)s B BA190a1 1aBUO| ou SsaljIWey %,

HSYIN
Jebeu]
Jabeuepy ao1nI0g

Buiob-uo | 5102/70/1L0

jos ejep Ayoedeo pue puewasp

BIA U93S - (Y40M N|D / 4D Buunp pue
Juswssasse }sod ‘sjoejuoo Je) aied
|eoos ui syuiod Aay je umop Buiddels
Sal|IWey Ul 9SEaI0UI U 8] [|IM 9JaY L

€T

papuaixa
usaq sey 910z
yoJe jo pua Aq
10B1JU0D SOXEANS
pua 0} sue|d

SoNE|ANS UNM JOBLUOD INO
pus pue asnoy-ui swes) 1 ||e Buiq o} uejd am awi} YoIyM Ag ‘syjuow
Ma) JxoU U} Ul SoxelANS Wwoly Aeme anow o} soe|d ul ue|d Jajsuel] -

J19yebo) swes) Sy g oyl buuqg o} 1 Jayjoue juiodde

0} Aemuapun s| Juswyinioal Jayuny pue wes} Syy ay) 0) pajulodde
uaaq sey (N 1) Jebeuely wea] jusuewlad | ‘Aemiapun aie

s)s0d Ja%I0M [e100S pue djou JaBeUB|N Wea | 8y} JOj JUSW)INIODY -

Syjuow maj
JX8U 8U} JOAO0 SWES) g [eul} ay} Joj soe(d axe) o} Juswyinioal Buiobug
‘9102 G2 Ul pale)s SWea) Z ISty 9y L "sexe|AiS woly Jano Buiye)

aq ||IM OUM SWES) }IOM [EIOOS $ }INI0aI 0} Aemlapun ale sue|d -

ssaiboud u|

9102 UoieN Aq ysod ul yess |y

‘[opow 89IAIBS
MaU 3} yyim aul| ul swes ] Aing 1 Jo uonejuswajdwi
pUE JUBLUYSI|GEISS B} SALIP [|IM JUSWINIOBI By |

HSVIN
[abeu)
JaBeuepy ao1nI9g

9102/€0/L0 | §102/80/L.0

90IAIBG JUSISSSSY
pue [BL19}0Y SAIOBYD U USI|GeISS O

Page 42

~

pajepdn usaq sey
ejep sjoejuo)

UONJEWIOJU| PUE 8DIAPE YBNOIY) Pa)SISSE SJOBJUOD 89f PUE SBDIAIS
djay Aues o) ssoioe paddals s}oeJU0D /LE BIED [BI00S S,UBIP|IYD O}
dn paddajs s}oBJU0D £/Z SMOYS UOIEWIOJU] BWOJNO0 d|qe|ieAe 8y -

ssao01d

HSVIN Ino 891A18Sq0 0} saljlIoyine [eo] Jayjo Aq sisenbai uazop

B J|ey uaaq os|e sey a1y "9o1oeld }saq MaIAaI 0} HSYIN SU} PaYISIA
0OS[e aABY SISSIADE JUSWILISAOD Y PUE ABMION “UOPUOT Ul JUSIOLe
1SOW 3y} se HSYIN uopb pabpajmodoe aAeY 891j0d 1BIN BYL -

Juswabeuew pjoysaiy) pue

Kousjsisuoo Jo sjans| ybiy sejessuowap Bunjew UOISIIBP JO MBIASY -
Buisealoap s|eajal ul

paj|nsai sey ‘suoijoe Ssnosip 0} saxelAS ypm sbuneaw ApybiupoS -

Buiuresy Buipienbajes paieoal
aney (sjoid oul) yeys skemuly ysig pue Aousby Japlog Mn -

9]eosawl} UIYlM paja|dLloDd SJUSWSSISSE JO % /6 -
aoe|d ul aJe pue paje|dwod usaq aaey sj090joid HSYIN -

sbuesw uoisiAladns Ul pasuapine
usaq sey yolym ‘paiaaijep Bulurel) pue pasibe spjoysaly] -

suonesado NS4 pue 389 uo
SN20j 0} 8q |[IM sqol J1ay} - awi} ||y HSYIA Ul Buppiom aq |jim yuablag
aAd8)e( € pue Jdag Ul Pale)s OUM Jadljo 891104 IS B SIalay] -

panalyoe aoueljdwod 1oy Jobie)y %001 plemioy Buiob Juswnoop
puaJ} Jipne Ajyyuow Ino uj papodal aq |IIM YdIym JO S)nsal 8y |00},
Jipne 21uoJ}o8Id Ajyjuow ay} jo Jed mou si Buiyew-uoisioap Jo Jpny -

J0j08u1 Juelsissy ay} Aq palieys aie pue aoe|d ui ale pusje
sioupied A8 INO UDIUM Ul pUB papusjie [|am aIe yolym sbuea

BuiobuQ -
diysiauped oib6sjes pue sBuiesw uonesado HSYIN Jeinbey -

pajajdwon

yeys abel] pue HSYIA |e 0} uaalb Buluiel pjoysaly] -

‘Juswissasse Joj Buissaiboid
SOSED ||B UO JOYEW UOISIOap [eul 8y} Sulewal Jobeuep HSYIN auL -

1deouod HSYIN
2y} pue Buijew uoisioap aJed [e100s a1ojdxs 0) sseuped o) bulule)
Jo Auanljap pue spjoysaiyy buipseBal uoissnosip Jouped Bulob-uQ -

jobue) 9,66 ‘pauueld Buyew-uoisioap Jo IpNY "HSYIN pue
abey] wouy Bujew-uolsioap Jus)sisuod bulyesipul e}ep pue sjpny -

sinoqublau
|eosIe)S YIM aul| ul SI pJeog Juawanoidw|-jes 09X JoaIyD
uopuoT ay] Aq papuswiwodal se siojedipu| A9y punole ejeq -

%06
3n0qe S| HSVIN Ad Bujles v (Ul J0 SSoUSAROZYT -

sojel [essjol-oy -

uoljewlojul pue ao1Ape ybnouy) pajsisse sjoejuo)
saoInes djay Alues o) ssouoe dalg
BOIAIBS IOM [B100S Alojnje)s sayiuapl Alies|o HSYIN -

paje||oo si aul| pJeog juswanroidw|
-J|9S 08Xg JaIyD uopuo] ay| Aq papuswiwiosal
se siojealpu| Ay Buimoloy punole ejeq -

HSYIN
Jebeu]
JaBeuepy ao1nI0S

9102/%0/10 | §L02/¥0/L0

swea)
HSVIN pue abeu | sy} Aq Buiew
-UoISI09p JUS}SISU0D pue paroidw|

%4

9102 994
3sod sabueyn

snjejg suopoy - ssaiboid

sjebie] Aay

SQUOJSI|IIN PUB SAINSES|\ SoUBWLIONA]

sjeq pu3 | sjeq yeis pes

uopoy

9y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

JUBWISSASSY B S[eLI9)aY pue HSVIN ‘@beli] Buiroidwy iz wealys y1opm



%0

%Ll

%E€8

I

pajajdwon

abejusoled
JaquinN
91/5102Z 10§ SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

Page 43

HSVI utim pejuiodde mou a1e s,yAd| 31 G0 PUe swi [In4 -

€ 19A9] 0} dn Bulutes aiayy paje|dwod

aney yejs abeu] '910z/10/G1 Uo aoe|d axe} 0} anp S| 1xau ay)!

pue G10z/60/81 uo aoe|d %00} ualp|iyd uo joedwi pue AQ UO UOISSaS
1sl14 'gDS7 ubnouy) pauueld usaq sey yejs |je Joy Buluien AQ -

HSVIN Ul 19310M AQ Pa}esipap B Mou Si 1y ] -
XLJEW UONESusp! AQ SOpeuleg Jo pue swies)

S puUE JUSWISSSSSY ) 0} |00} UOHEIRNUSP| ¥SIY HSYA-VYAVYVYI U}
40 sa|didutid 8y} SBPNIIUI YIIYM 00} JUSWISSSSSE HSU pajusua|du] -

‘ue|d pue ABajens AQ UM pasul| 8q O} SAIAIOE M -

"HSYI ulyim pajuiodde YAQI Wi (Ind -

wey AQ a1 Ajenb juswssasse
ul Juswanoidwi Ue S)edIpul SIPNE PUE SISYIOAA [EID0S -

‘salpowal

|eBa Jo sioyenadiad jsurebe siapio ul asealoul uy - HSVYIN
“SPIEMUO Jebeu|
Y2Je|\ S|00) AQ UO 821AI8S O Aq Ino pajjod 8q o) Buluiel] - *0SO wouy saljiwey AQ 4o} Bunsodubis penoidwi -| G1L02/60/1L0 | GLOZ/Y0/L0 | Jebeuepy aoinies AQ Jo} 180 soines anoudw| 92
1a3 ul pakojdwa yejs jusuewlad %001} -
sasodind Buuoyiuow }o6pnq Joy 8oueul4 pue Jabeuew
s|euajau Bujwiopad U 8oIApE SUIBJUOD SO - Joluas usamjaq aoe|d axe} sbuneaw Ajyuopy Juswebeuew
Joluas o} Juss pue 6|0z |Udy ul paje|dwod maiaas 1 a3 [INd -
Avyeipawwi
Uym jleap ale pue sanss| Ajjuapl djay sbunsaw Ajyyuop - uoljeJapIsuod juswaoidw
J8yuny Jo} INS 1B PasSNosIp 8q 0} MalAay Hoysdeus -
ooeyd ur abew) yum Bulures |-g-| - HSVIN
paiay - *Buipiodal 0} yoeoidde Jiayy Ul JUSISISUOD *Burpodau jo ssauljawiy pue Bulp1ooal Joa.1100ul 1ebeu) *malnal Joysdeus Buimoj|oy
pajajdwon obel| woij sanss| 10w ou aJe aiay] - UIBWSI PUE SWES) }IOM [B100S SY) YIM Sul| Ul jJom o} 13 -|  Jo A¥eam sanss| Jo Jaquinu moj Jodal wes) IOVIYL| BuloB-uo | 5L0z/40/10 | JoBeuely eoinies | sanoeld Buipiooas yeys | @3 aroudwi| G2
am%%wwmwm: 5 snjejg suopoy - ssaiboid sjabue] Aoy SQUOJSI|IIN PUB SAINSES|\ SoUBWLIONA] ajeq pu3 | ajeq Mels pea uopody 19y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

JUBWISSASSY B S[eLI9)aYy pue HSVIN ‘@beli) Buiroidwy iz wealys y1opm



(euuad) Ayenb pue diysiapes) ‘sanss| ao1joeid uo Snooy [IM
PUE PauLIYUOD aq 0} d}ep Me)s awwelboid Buutes L MaN -

sjuawissasse Jo IndydBnoiyy %/6 -

awuwelboid
Bujuiesy aouel||y uopuo }sap) 8y} ybnolyy palaniiep
50 0] BNUNUOD [|IM S||INS JUSWISSSSSE UO Bulules) sonoeld -

Jejs 0} sabessaw Aay Juswdojeraq g Buiuses ajepdn -

$8woono
JIpNe 0} PayUul| SISYIOM [BIDOS pUB S,\L YIM YIom Joalip ybnoiyy
sjuawssasse ul Juawanoidwi sonoeud Buipoddns aie s did -

uodal siy) Jo awi ay) Je paje|od Buleq sainbly - 910z yoJe e
Ja)38q 10 poob pabpnl %8y - 10z 1deS e

1289 40 poob pabpnl %9t - GLOZ YoIe e

:Buipelb ur Juswanoidwi Buimoys sypne ase) -

ssaiboud uj

BuioBuo - sypne Bupiepspun s )AL Ul 8oueldwod %001 -

‘paynuapl Alzes|o sawod)no palinbal Yyim s:
pUE UBIP|IYD UM Juslabebus [njBulueaWw J08)jel O} SJUBLUSSESSY -

‘SjusISsosse
ul 81| $400] Poob Jeym, uo BulUIEl} BAISOBI O) SIBMIOM [BIO0S -

"PaWLIUOD 8] 0} dJep Ue)s swweibold -

*GL0Z duNnr )s| Uo pajuswaldwil Sem ainjonyis Juswabeuew maN -
‘sa1B60jouo.yo ajep 0} dn ulejuod 0} SPI0dal BSED IV -

‘(Remyred

s,ualp|iyD 40 Qv ‘dD ‘NID ‘uonuaniau] Alue3) spom sbuipesooid
-aud pue Buiuued [ebs| uo snooy Jes|o e yum ‘Aousuewsad o)
Buluueld aleo [e120s 0} [edidjal wouy 3iom jo indybnoiyy parosdwy -

salouabe Jauped pue Ajiwe) au) yim
Juswabebus YIom [B100S pue SDI0A S,plIYD U} J03|}o] SJUSWISSISSY -

Sal|lWe) YIm pash aq 0} S|9POL UOUSAISUI UO SsjuaWwabpn||
pawLIojul pUe SISAJeU. JBSIO UIBJUOD S)JUSWISSISSE YIOM [BID0S -

"sJauonoeld siom [eoos
1 PUE BOIAISS YO BU) WO} PAUOISSILILIOD
aq 0} swweiboid Buulel) Juswssasse uy -

I[e 03} 3no pa3|

G102
aunp Aq pajuswa|dwi ainjonu)s juswabeuew maN -

‘Jyausq
s} Jodau Jyeys pue palanljep Burag si uoisiaiadns Ajjenb
yb1y ajesipul SAeAINS YelS pue Jpny uoisiaedng -

JJE)S 0} PapI0dal pue paIsAlep sI uolsiARdNs %001 -

9102 YoIeN Aq poob 9,08 ®

G102 Jdos Aq pooB 9,06 e

G102 UdJeNl Aq poob oGe e

:BuipelB ul Juswanoidwi moys sjipne ase) -

‘sjpne
Bunjepspun siebeuew wes) ul 9oueldwod %001 -

9102/¥0/L0

S102/¥0/L0

1MSO
Jabeuepy ao1nI8g

1MSD 9y} Ul SJUSWISSasse
4om [e100s Jo Ayjenb ay) anoudw)

e

sanss| a21joeid ssaippe 0} padojarap
sueld uonoe pue s,|\|| 0} papeosed ale sjpne ajenbapeu; Auy -

sbuneaw

siobeuep\ 99IA19G Je passnosip aJe pue paje|dwod usaq aney
SHpNy ‘sanss| passalppe aAey siabeuew alaym ueld uonoe
ue paledaid pue uoisirledns gOd pue souewlopad pajpne
aABY SIBUONIIOBI Juswanoidw] 910eld G1.0Z ISnBny woid -

(IWINS) Buneaw siabeuepy ao1nI8g ay) Je siseq Ajyjuow
© U0 PasiunIos pue pajojuow Bulag ale suoisiriedng -

(Hodau

SIY} JO B} 8y} Je paje||od Buraq synsal Yole|) %8/ - 91 go4
%L - €0

%08 - 20

%9L- 1O

:1M\SD 10} @ouewlopad uoisialedng

jJuelsissy ay} 0} sHodau Ajyjuow aie asay |
‘swiea} ||e ssoioe pajuswa|dw useq sey Jaxoe uoisiiedng -

C®>_m aJe suoieue|dxs Jes|d ‘Indo0 ], wao_u Sy} aleym

1-1 Bulnieal ale Je)s Jey) sajedlpul Uoisiaiadns uo tonm._ Aiyuopy

uoisinsadns qOd %001 -

suoisialadns Jo Auanliep pue aoueldwod %001 -

BuloB-up

§102/v0/L0

1LMSO
Jabeue|y 90IAI8S

yejs Jo Juawdojanap pue uoisiaiadns
JeuoIssaj01d Jo [ona] ayy Buiroidu]

Page 44

€€

'saseo AI0Jnjess [|e Jo UoEDO|[e %00 -

‘UOWWOD 8Je SUONeN}oN|) PEOJSSED pue Yiom Jo Jndybnoiy)
Jo Buuoyuow Jenbai s aay] ‘(8| 1961e)) 6| SI peojased
obelane Jualing "siseq Jenbal e UO Pamalral SJe SPeojasED
*90IAI9S BU) SSOIOE BBEJIOAE §| JUBWINOOP SPIEpUE)S
UOpUOT YpMm aul| ul paaiBe speojases 1o} yewyouag -

BuiobuQ -
pajajdwo)

‘puewap yym paubije
SI YoIym S91AISS BY) SSOIOE Jjeys Aouabe Jo asn a|qIxa|y Sl a1ay] -

*Sa|[IWe} Joj SaWoNo poob ypum Jauuew Alpwiy
© Ul US)EHBpUN S| SOSEO BU) UO USYELBPUN }IOM dU} PUE PEOJOSED
a|qesbeuel yjim pajioddns ale SIBYION [BI00S 8INSus 0] -

“UaIp|Iyo g JO peojased abelone
U aABY SISYIOM [e100S |[e Jey) 8)edipul 1as Bjep Aoap

Bulob-uQ

§102/10/L0

1MSD
Jabeue|y 90IAI8S

J9310M [100S palyijenb
J1ad sosE0 g|, - SpPeojaseD abelaAy!

e

201AI9s sy} ybnouy) papirosd
aq ||Im uoisirold poddng Ajwe4 "pajuswajdwi pue paaibe
u9aq SeY aINjoNJIS UOIUBASIH pue uojuaAlaiu| Aueg ay] -

Apjoam pasioey) S| pue (g
106.e}) 61 18 Ajus.LIND S| Ja3I0M [B100S Jad peojased abelany -

pajeoo)|e yJom Aiojness %001 -
Kenuspun

91B SMaIAIS)ul pue 0} payinioal Bulaq sisod 1 Buiurewsas | yum
dde usaq aney (|\ 1) siebeuejy wes] jusuewdad g9/G -

‘Aemuapun ||s aie smalnijul pue Buiobuo si ubledwed

BuiobuQ -
COECIIESY (nisseoons Bupiom usaq sey ubledwes BuisiaApe ulew ay] -

.wr_m_Q NIDO/dD 0} —ow_nsw ale ualp|iyd usym
IOM ORI Ul 8SESIOUI PUE BDIAIBS pajoblie} B 9A|80a) SaljlueS -

*Sal|ILey JOj SEUW0DINO POOH SABIYIE 0} SIIOPLIOM B|qe)S -

UOIJUSAIBIUI HJOM
|BIOOS SAISUSIUI Y)IM Jsisse 0} Jje)s poddns Jinioay -

juswiinioal jusuewlad -

sLoc/el/Lo

G10zZ%8a

§102/L0/L0

WEa) }I0M [EID0S UOBed
0} 8uo ‘siaxiom poddns Ajiwey ynioey

s)sod JoBeuew Wes) PUE >IoMm [e100s
|E 0} JuBWINIOBI Jusuewsad |Nyssaoong

1'e

9102 g9°d

NSodlsobhens suonoy - ssaiboid

snjeis

sjabie] Aay

SBUOJSAIIN PUE SBINSEI| 9OUBLLIOMA]

sjeq pu3

sjeq ues

uopoy

]

¢ XIAN3ddVv

SIMSD 8y} ulypim asnoead }om [e1dos Buiroidwyi :¢ weass YoM

~




%0

%62 _ %L abejusoled

z JaquinN

9102 994
3sod sabueyn

ssaiboud uj

BuiobuQ -
pajajdwo)

snjeis

oneys CEUIGIIENT]  pajsjdwiod 91/5102 104 SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS
9102 Iudy Jo pus Aq siy} Juewsd ‘Hejs a1e) [elog
0} Ue|d "sJoBeuejy Wwea | yum Ji yul] pue | \\SD O} 8Snoy- 0} paiayo aq 0} sBuipasooid-aid pue sjuswssasse
sonoeid Bulig 0) MAIA B U)IM SOIAISS AU} JO ABMISPUN MBIASY - ul Bujures) pue uone)Nsuod aseo Bujobuo uy -
panssi Buiaq aJe s}oB.U0O MU pue paje|dwod *9[e0saWI} MaU UlyIm pajejdwod e
U93q 9ABY SMAIASY UONS|dWOD JBSU S| MAIASI BDIAISS - Bureq syuswissasse Bunuaied ul asealoul uy - <
‘'swiea) \S pue |eba| yym paaibe
s1om Jo Ajjenb pue JndyBnouyy o3 yu| $S8JUN S}aM 9 UIYIM pa}a|dwod aq 0} Sjuswssasse bunualed - ‘pauinbai S| JUBLUSSOSSE [EDIPAW/|EDIUID B SSBjUN Q
JEDID B YJIM JOBIJUOD SISNIOA Buijualed Jo SMalAal Jayuny - sal|lwe} sBuipasooid-aid |[e 10} asnoy- ui paje|dwiod (@)
[CINE Buleq sjuswssasse Bunuaied ul asesioul Uy - ©
Alonioaye siy} Joy [esodoud ayy uo Buyauq pajiejop sjesedss 99g) "paseqal 1MSD 9oINIBS
2I0W YIOM 0} 80IAISS SMO|[E JeY) USMEUSPUN MBIASI [enu] - 9q 0} sjuswssasse Joj sjobie) payels A(n} S| 90IAI8S 80UQ - *Ja}J0 pue [090)0id Ysaljal 0} 80IAISS -| 91.02/¥0/L0 | SLOZ/¥0/L0 | JoBeuBy 90IAeS | Juswssasse Bunuaied aAloa)e SpIAOId n.@l
HSVI 01 pajuiodde aq o) Jesiom YAQI
90871
pue juswdojanaq @ Buluiea Aq papinoid aq o} Bululen AQ - Ad
Burouanadxa ualp|iyo Joy sawwelboud o} bunsodubis J0)08};
SdAD 0} @ouepinb pue poddns pue suejd Ajojes 1es|d yym o} papuodsal pue paynuapl 1MSD ssu Bunuasaud ay) S| 80Us|oIA disawoq
apinoid 0} HSYIA 0} pajuliodde Jasiom YAQ| Jusuewlad - HSVYIN UIYIMm WYAQ| JUSUBLLISG [SI UBIPJIYD U0 AQ JO Joedwl 8y} Jey) 1oajjal sjuswssassy| BuloB-ug | GL0z/Z1/10 | 1ebeuepy aoinleg 2Jaym sased ||e Joj asuodsal pauyed| 9'€
SI9MIOM
[B190S || 0} 9102 [Mdy Ul INO Pa||0J 8q O} SPJepUB)S 8210eId -
pajuswa|dwy
Bureq mou si 901AI8S UOHUBAIBIU| AliBT] Y)iM SoBLS)UI Japeg -
ynsai
B SE YIoM Od JO SAWOIN0 8y} Ul Juswiaaoidwl paylew e
usaq sey alay) pue ybiupoy A1ans aoe(d axe) sdoyssiom O1d - (lepod gam sainpaooid
0J)93[8 BU}) X-UL UIIM JB|[IWIE) SIE SISXIOM [BI00S -
pajuswajdwi pue pamalnal
uaaq aAey ssao0ud O1d pue sbuipasasoid-aud uo Buurel) - £102 Jayyebo | Buuopn, Buipnjoul yels pue siabeuew
Ile 0} 1o pajjol pue pajepdn usag sey aouepinb sonoeld -
panaiyoy suonuaAIBuI
- suonuaAaul Ajpwiy BuuiaAljep Ul yejs Hoddns o) sdid @ 'G1.0Z J0 Japenb jsuy ul s1ayjo pue siexoel| | Ajowi Buiealjep ul jels poddns o} siojusw aonoeld ®
G10Z 100 ul 9oe(d %00} yoiym ajepdn X-Li| HNoY Aq jno pajjol 8q 0} yJom sbuipaasoid-aid uo Bulues] - 2ouepInb pue spiepuejs aonoeld ||e MaIneY e
3y} JO Yed - pamalnal 8ouepinb pue spiepue)s aopoeld ||y e *sjulejdwod ul uoldNpal e si aisy] e
swelpwn *pUNOQ-aWI) PUB PASSNIO), *SUIUOW g 10} 3}IOM [B190S AIOJNJE]S O) PaLIa)el-al Jou
sAep Buiiom Q| 8Y) UIYIM Y)IM Jjeap a1om sjule|dwiod pwodino si yaiym ueld paaibe ue si a1ay) pUB JUSWISAJOAUI JNO JNOge| pue ao1AI8S AIojnje)s e 91903l Jabuo| ou saljiwey 9, e
pue g ‘| Jepenp ||y ‘sjureidwod oy Bulpuodsai ul eouewiopad Jea|o aJe sAaAIns pue }oeqpas) Ul sieuped pue saljiwe) ‘YJels - ‘uonuanIaul
panoiduw| "paAaIYoY - Sjule|dwiod Ul UoioNpal e s a1ay] e pue Juawssasse jsod umop dajg Ul asealoul uy e
obeloAe syam |-z | SI Yiom sBuipesooid-ald e [sinoqybiou [eonsie)s Yym aul| ul pue paonpal ale Sa)el [Bla)al-ay - obeIone syeaMm 71-Z| SI iom sBulpasooid-ald e
syuow ybus| ul syjuow Z1-  abesoAe saseo 49 e
9 Jo abeiane 0} Buinosdwi s| swiy ased abelane 49 pue NID ‘uonuanlayul Alonjels yjuow g abesane sased NID e
:s)|nsal eyep umop-da)s pue dn-da)g - Joy ajeldoidde aie s82IAISS S,UBIP|IYD OJUl PAAISOAI S|BLISISY - :sa)eolpul ejep umop-dajg pue dn-dajs -
sue|d ajeudoidde aney pue pajeodojje saseo Aioiness IV “%8L ‘paaibe sjebie) pue Jno pajjol si 1B BI90S S,UaIPIYD *SUIUOW g 10} 3}IOM [B100S AIOJNJE)S O) PaLIa)el-ai Jou 1MSD Jauuew Ajawn pue paulyep Apeso e ul
Je siajoweled Jobie) UIY)IMm paulewal ABY SaJel [BLIJ0I-9Y -|pue 90IAI9S UONUBAISYU| Alieg usamjaq aoepaul Bululino [000j0id -|  pue 8d1A1as AIojnje)s e aA1e0al Jabuoj ou saljiwey 9%, -| BuloB-uQ | 1.0z/¥0/10 | JoBeue adiAIag | papiroid 818 SUCHUSAIBIUL YoM [eI100S |I| G'E
suoioy - ssaiboid sjabie] Aoy S9UO)SaI|N PUB S2INSEI|\ oUBLLIOMDd ojeq pu3 | ajeq Mejs pea uopoy 19y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

SIMSD 3y} ulypm asnoead yom [e1dos Buiroidwyi :¢ weass YoM



9102 994
jsod sabueyn

ssaibouid uy
aue suejd Aemyjed jo uona|dwod pue pasueso s ejep suejd skemyjed -
sue|d Aemuyyed anosdwi 0} Indul S, A BWOS YIM /|/910Z Ul 8oe|d axe}
0} Aep Aemy SdA "991AI8s 8y} Jnoybnouy) pajeulwassip aq o} Buiuies|
ay) Joj Juswabeuew Aq pamalnal aq o} suejd Aemyjed poob jo ajdwes -
sjuswauinbal g7 sy} jo Wed se pauiesy Buiaq
aJe yjejs Jawloj Aue pue uonesiuebio ayj ulof Aay) se uoos se Buiuiesy
OA1903) SIale)S Mau Jey) os (Alyjuow aoeld saye) pue) ainjn) o|qesssio)
8y} Joy Bujobuo s| Bujuies] “Buiurely 3O pue O1d Pusye %00} -
2onj0e1d Ul pajos|yal SI 90I0A S,PlIYD
9010e.d Ul PajOs|ja) SEM SD10A S,|IUD S} SI19YM SOSED By} B19yMm SISED JO %08 SS)el)SUOWSP JIpne dnewsy] -
10 %08 punoj Jipne oneway ] ‘sbuipiooas pajiejep Aq ueld Aemuyied/aied
By} Ul pajoa|jal SI 9OI0A S,P|IYO SY) Jey) 2INSUS O} SISNIOM [e100S ||V - poob %08 - 91 Yoe e
Poob 9%0G - 1 1das ©
Jodai siy) Jo awn ay) Je paje|jod Buiaq sainbiy - 910z yole| e pooB %Ge - G| Yole e
Jayaq 1o poob pabpnl %8y - 610z 1des e Buiuiel] 3S/071d PUSKE %06 - :S8SEe pa}ipne 10} SBUOISI|I -
Jayaq 4o poob pabpnl %9y - GL0Z UdJe ®
:S9SEO PajIPNE 10} SAUO)SA|IIN - ‘uaJpliyo ‘ejep Jobeuew ajesodio) -
10} SOWO02IN0 Poob ainsua 0} pasaAlep Bulules) pusye yels -
SVAN %001 89 pPINOYs 8}ed0ApE Ue
EIA 9)E00APE UE 9AI9031 AJUaLIND S)ed0APE Ue palinbal oym Oy %001 - ‘Juswebebus| eAle0al puE 8JEd0APE UE alinbal oym Qv JO Jaquin -
dA 218D Buinea pue 9y panoidwi Jo 90USpIAT - SioAB9)| 218D pue Qv
BuiobuQ - a|doad BunoA yym uone)nsuod ul 910z 9o1n8s Jnoge ajdoad ov1 Joy Buiuueld a1eo Jiayy ul uopedioed
LOIEICITERY  sunr ul 9oe(d 9¥e) 0) 90UBILJUOD SISABST aJe) Joj Aemiapun Buluueld - SWLIOJ 0BgPa3) IO} Sjel uinjal %09 - BunoA o sje|jea| UoNEBWIOUI PUB SWLIO) ¥oBqpaa -[ BuloB-uQ | GL0Z/0/10 | Jebeuepy aoinies uosiad BunoA 1o pjiyd Jo souspiAg| '¢Q)
uonNNQUIUOD S, dA <
ay) Buipnjour sueid Aemyjed jo ssauaAoaye ay) ‘|dY JO suoissalboid
ay) ssalppe 0) suoisiniadns dOd “Anybiupioy pasoel) Buiag Jo sseooud Q
By} Ul S YIYM UOISSNOSIP 9SBD SAI)99]Ja4 10} UoIsiAtedns Od %001 - mg
(modal siyy Jo oW 8u) Je paje|jod Buisq syNsal YdIeIN) %y - 91 994 [all
%28 - €0
%.S - 20
%9 - LO S10Z
‘wea) AInr - sweay ||e ssoioe Jaoel) uoisiaiadns Juswajdul -
dA wocmc.totmn :O_m_?_mnjw ‘Jjels ||e o} QQN_Q ul Jaxoen Eo_w_?_wa_‘_m - ‘weaj} ay} ulyym aseq ||INs pjing ‘sypne yo
cmjot‘_u SIDYIONA |BIDOS UBaMIeq o_._mEQO_®>®U pue a9l oeld swesj ||e 10} uol: .?.m&:w aod %001 -
BuiobuQ - S, L Mau Joj Snooy Jeajo pue uonelieA|  poob Buiuses| abeinoous pue so10eId 9AI0SSY - "S)ipne a|doad Buno yess Jo uswdojaaap pue uoisiaiedns
ﬁwaQ_QEQO S9jeljsuowap yaiym taxoely :O_w_EmQ:w paulejuiew pue UwucmEm_QE_ - YO r_m:n:_.: S9|l} ose? ||e uo mr__v_mrr_ uoIsIo8ep Jsnqol Jes|) - m_._D_w_?_mQ—._m jo >._m>__®_u pue mo_._m__QF_Oo %001 - mr__omur_o G102/v0/1L0 ‘_mmNEN_\‘ oINS _N_._O_mmwwo‘_a JO |9A8] By} mE_>OLQE_ (584
(21 ISAV)
BuiobuQ - 9102 YoJepy ul a1ed ul oAes] Jaxom Jad | = swea] aie) ul Ualp|IyD Joj peojased abelany ovl 19340Mm [e100S paylienb sad sased 9|
CDEILITRLY o) /| pue aued ul uaipliyD ul | Je ‘Apes)s sulewas peojaseo abelany - 0 9| 0} | USBM}BQ paUIEjUleW peojased abelany - :19s ejep Apjedp -| BuloB-uo | GL02/¥0/10 | JoBeuepy 9o1A8S | - 1| UIYIM Ulewal speojased abelany| z'v
wea) Ajijenp pue Buipsenbajes Aq pes)| buiaq
SI NID/dD/QV 1 SS01o. uaip|iyd Buissiw ||e 1oy dnolo ysiul4 pue yse] -
sseo0ud
Bujuueld [ebs| ayy ybnoiyy panoidde usaq aaey uaip|iyd Buissiw | |V [V -
Jabeue|y 901M8S 8y} Aq siseq Ajpjeem e
UO PasSaSSE Ysli pue pamainal Buiaq aie a1ed wouy Buissiw UaIp|iyo Iy -
a|eosaw AIOINJEIS UIYIM PBYISIA DV %06 -
paulejulew oljel Aouabe 0} yejs yusuewad %08 -
pue paAsIyde Usaq Sey SPeojase) padueleg Oy UoNEIO|. %001 -
Buissiw Oy ||e jo Jybisiano Juswabeuew AyaspA -
SdA 104 8L
pue swea) O[O 10} 1 SI Yolym abeIoAR SIIAISS SY) UIU)IM SIE SPEO[eSE) - SId) %oed) 0} G> 91ed wouj Buissiw UaJp|Iyod JO SJaquinu moT -
pajuswsa|dwi sbunssw juswabeuew sousuewlad Jeinbay -
S9sEO QY AI0Jnje)s Jo uoneso(e %004 - 'sajeosauul) A1ojnjels uiyim payisiA O 40 %001 -
*S9I0UBDEA ||} 0} S1oxIom Aouaby -
OV ulisod ul yejs Jusuewnad %0/ - speojaseo
SdA ul1sod ul yjes yusuewlad %66 - "SI9XIOM [BIOOS |[B U)IM JUSLU)INIOS] JUSUBWIA - paoueleg Q] Uonedojle %00 - 1S eep Apesp -
‘Jow a.e syuswalinbas
BuiobupQ - S92IAI9S Y)oq ssouoe pajulodde siebeuew g// "sjoesuod ‘pajulodde| G0z 1das Aq (swes) O[O 10} 1) obeiaAR 90IAI8S BY) wea] s,dA ® OV OV Aloymess |je jey) ainsus
LIEICITERY jusuewlad uo siebeuew Jiay) Jo Ajuolew ay) aAeY SWEs) SJA PUe O] -[siebeuepy WES] ||B YIM [NJSSE00NS JUSWIINIOSI JUSUBWLISG -|  UIYIIM aJe Speojased pue paj|l aJe sisod Aioiness |y -| Bulob-uo | 510z/¥0/10 | Jebeue|y aoinies 0] pajeoo||e aq [|IM S9seDd OV IIV| L't
snjejg suoay - ssaibouig sjabie] Aoy S9UO}SII\ PUB SAINSEI|\ SDUBWIOMIY ajeq pu3 | ajeq Mels pea uonay JEY|

¢ XIAN3ddVv

ajdoad Buno) 3 9y 10} sawodino Buiroidwy 1 wealys YoM



‘papuIoal aq o} Hel
ul SeseDd JapJo Juswaoe|d Jayjo oN “pawlyuod buiaq si siepio juswaoe|d
JO UOIJeO0| BY) 8I9YM SOSED g "panssi a4 o} ||is saseo g sbuipasooid
ul AJualind sased Z ‘papnjouod Uaaq dABY SBSED g "Pa)OAaJ 8] O} SI9pIo
juswaoe|d Joj HNOD 0} PauIN}al Udaq dABY SASeD Z| “NdT Je pamalnal ue|d Aousuewsad
uaaq aAeY sased ||y ‘suoledlidde yuswaeoe|d Guibieydsip jJo main e sey Jeak e Jano %001 ‘910z UdJe Aq Oz uonoas Iy -
ul ajeudoidde aseym pnoD o) pauinjal Buieq pue pamalaal si (syuow siaydope aaipoadsold yym paoe|d Jo paysjew usaq aney
21 UIyim paAalyoe jou sem uoldope a1aym) Sased JapiQ Juswadeld Iy - ue|d uondope ue ypum uaipjiyd ||y "SawWwooino jusuewsad %01> = 94D Ojul A1Jus Jo syjuow
ajowo.d 0} sased wis) buoj [|e Jo U eUapuUN MBIASY - 2\ Buipuy Ajiwey Joy Buiiem uaup|iyd Jo abejusdied -
Juswabeuew mau Japun sbBuipssooid %0€> = 94D Ojul A1Jus JO syjuow
ssaiboid 9.e2 JO JaqUINU 8y} Pasealdul SBY 3S[0IaXa S|U| ‘SSED sMalnal Aleinbas ov1 6 Buipuly Ajiwey Joy Buiyiem ualp|iyd jo abejusdlad -
uj, 0} ,838|dwo), NS "SUOIOE JB3|D U}IM Pamalral pue s|\d 0} }oalgns uaaq aney (9| wJa) Buo ||e Joy sawooino Jusuewsad Ajpwiy apinoid o] - oVl
wouj pabueyo Jo abe ay) Japun) saseo Ogs ||y "aoe|d ul mou sue|d wis) Buo| sjeudoidde ‘SHOOM ! ovl Jo} uoisinoud yuswaoeld jusuewsad
sey snjejg|ssaiboud uj puUE pamalnal S3SED 81ed (0Z UOI199S) Alelunjoa wis) buol |1y - sBunesw A|yJuow-PNoo Ul PaASIYOE SHIIM 9T - 92 = PapNIOU0D 8q 0} S8sed O1d Jo abeiane syl -| 91.0Z/€0/LE | SL0Z/¥0/L0 | 19BeuB 91M8S | Jo ssauljewl pue Bulojuow aroidw)| 8¢
paja|dwiod sd3d %001 - §L0Z 280 ®
paje|dwod sd3d %08 - §10Z 1deS
paje|dwod sdad %1LS - GL0Z UdIel @
Je aJe yolym
Sd3d Jo uonajdwod ay} Jojuow o} pasn ejep aouewopad AyaspA -
|00Y9S [BNUIA PUE WES) PaSN U] UaJp|IyD au) yim sbunssw Jejnbay -
OV 9beinoous 0}
SOAUSOUI pue ADBIaYI| 9SBIOU] O} JSNI| }00g ‘UoNIN} |1| BUIUOISSILWOD N
UO pasn Uaaq ABY SWOS ‘GLOZ UJEIN Ul [00UIS 0) PaA|oAap Buleq ddd <
§102-710Z "Pajuawalduwi Jou $821n0sal ddd 19b.e) o} uonesado Jo [9po
:UB|d Juawanoidw| PajsjO Wolj SUOHO. [ENPISAY - pa1a|dwod %00} - GL 990 Q
paje|duwod %G/ - G| }daS o o))
‘G102 Ay YigL Aq 1HVINS pa1e|dWiod %06 - G| UdIEN @
aq ued paaibe sueld UONOY Jey) 0S 3o 0) SPEW 8q O} SJuUsWPUSWY ((d3d) ueld [
‘UB|d Juawanoidw| pajsjO Wolj SUONO. [ENPISAY - uoneoNp3 [BUOSIa B JO UoNa|duwiod ay) Joy SaUOISaI - (a N
Jpaiay, ‘G102 ‘uoissalboid ainsus 0} ‘d3d
0} ,buiobug |udy 1oy Jos uona|dwod oy 8yeq SO pue SOSA ‘S1d ‘SMS O} 9|qIssedoe ayy ybnouyy soe|d Ul ueid aA1OBYS UB DABY SBUOISI|IW
- pajojdwo), wd)sAs auo UIY)Im paulejuoo si eyep ssalboid pue Juswiule)e ||e Jey) os 119y} Buneaw jou pue Q] 81e OYM USIP|IYo ||e ainsud -
woly pabueyo d3de uynm waysAs Buuojuow pue Buryoel} dojoasp 0} dpew uoisioaQ ‘abe jo sieak g| 0} dn ‘pjo sieak Jooyos OV 40} Sawoono poob sjelisuowap
BVt pajejdwod 1ueld Juswanoidw| pajsjO WOl SUOIO. [ENpISaY - ¢ Jo sabe ay} usamiaq Dy || 1oy aoe(d ul sd3d %001 [sbunesw aoueuwopad Ayeam pue ejeq woyy sayepdn -| GL0zZ/Z1L/10| S102/1L0/L0 | [enui jo pesH sjndjno juswaoeld uoneonp3| 2y
Kioyepuew si souepuane
‘SJUSLUSSOSSE U}|eay Jojluow pue 3oed) 0} sjeuoissajoid yjesH
pajeubisap yym som oy aoeyd ul sbuesw Bupiojuow Apjeam g Jeinbay -
swea) HA pue |ejuaw 1o} SAOYSHIOAN -
/M3IA3J JO SUOIIEDJOU PUNOJE SjusWAINSEaW slauped y)eaH yum sbunesw souewlopad Apjaam-g
BuiobuQ - dojanap 0} yleaH ynm Ajasojo Buipiom ale wes) ay| ‘ajeosaw 'SINoY g ulylim puodsal pue s \S 0} 9)e|edss ‘ajeasawl) ov1 OV 40} Sawo2no poob
pajajdwon ulypm pa3e|dwod a1am SJUBWISSasSe Y)leay Dy %06 abesaae uQ - UIY}IM SJuBWSSaSSE Yjeay QY Jo uona|dwod %06 -| ‘sbunesw aouewlopad Apj@am pue eyeq woly sayepdn| 510z/21/10| $1.02/10/10 | Jobeuepy aoiniag [ajensuowsap sindino Juswaoeld yyeaH| 94
Jodau siy} Jo awiy ay) Je paje|jod Buleq saunbly - 910z YoJe e
J1aj33q 10 poob pabpnl %8t - GLOZ 1doS ®
Jajeq 10 poob pabpnl %9t - GL0Z YoIe @
:S9SED JO JIPNE %001 -
sjuaied WoJj JUSSUOD JUSLIND SeY SSeD OZS
yoeas Bunsua ‘Aemiapun LOYOD AJBJUN|OA OZ UOIIIBS 8U} JO M3IASI |IN4 - Jayaq 1o poob %08 - 9| YoIep e
19)19q 10 POOb %G - G| }d9S ®
(g' 0} 48)04) Aemuspun pue payoel) uoisiniedng - Jayaq 1o poob %GE - G| YoIep e
:S9SEO PaJIPNE IO} SBUO)SI|IIN -
910Z 924 JO pus JO Se (SaseD JuaLINd)
S)99M GZ anoqe Jsnl S| sased Od dbelany ‘sbunesw O1d Jeinbay - S9SED JO JIpNe %001 - sleosauwl ulyym paje|dwod smainal Qv JO %001 -
pajuawaldwi Bunssw Bupioel) Aousuewsad Alyjuop - S9[EOSAWI UIYIM SMBIABI DV %00} - S
92 = PapN|ouU0d aq 0} Sased O1d JO abeuane ay] -
Japio [euly 0} uonesldde woyy uononpal e ul Buninsas SH99M 9Z S| sased Od abeleny -
pajuswajdwi A|Injsseoons uaaq sey (O1d) BUINO MeT 21iand 8y - ISMIASI QY] PUB SBWIODJNO WUNOY -
siobeuew wes) Jusuew.ad Jo JuswINIOSY -
spomawely Bunipne aseo ay) ypm soueldwoo |ind - 0 Juswabeuew souewlopad Apybiunoy uswsldw - Bujew-uoisioap
BuiobupQ - UaIp|Iyo DY 40} SWIOJIN0 oVl Jown) aiow pue Jepaq o) buipes| soeld
pajsjdwon 510z 1dag ul pajuswajdwi ainjonuis Jabeuepy aooeld MON -|  poOB sjelsuowap 0} }snqos ale sueld aled ||e aInsud o - Joyjoel) uoisiniadns |-z-1 - 9102/€0/LE | SLOZ/Y0/L0 | 1oBeuep 9o1nIes | Ul S| jybisiano Juswebeuew aAnoay3| gy
am%%mwm_-wm: 5 snjelg suoljoy - ssaiboid sjobie] Aoy S9UO}SI|I PUB SOINSEI|\ 9OUBWIONAd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Heis pea uonoy 3y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

ajdoad Buno) 3 9y 10} sawodino Buiroidwy 1 wealys YoM



ssaiboid

uj, 0} ,paje|dwoy,
woly pabueyo
sey snjejs -

910z Ihdy
10 pus 0} pabueyo
sey sjep pu3 -

BuiobuQ -
pajajdwon

ssaiboud uj

lejoL

%0

%L2

%EL

ohels

ssaiboad u|

pajojdwo)

abejusoied
JaquinN
91/510Z 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

5102 100 wouy pajuodde sobeue| 90IAI9S SAA JUSUBWIS -
510z 1das wouy jsod ul sebeuepy wes | JusueuLdd -

9102 |udy Ul 8oe(d 8)e) 0} Sjusssesse
s)ybu uewny pue sjuswssasse abe uo Bululel) / JuawdojaAsp Yes -

*a|qe-juiodde atem om} pue aae|d %00} smalria)ul }sod ul Jauonoeld
paouBApY Z "speojased a|qeabeuew yym aolojyiom jusuewad Ajing -

9Jeosawul ulylm pajaIdwod %96 - 91 o e
aleosaul} ulyym pa}a|dwod % /6 - 9| Uer e
Ppaja|dwod %G6 - G| }dos e
:Juswissasse Jad sAep (g jo abelane
UB Ypm Xew SAep G UIU)IM PaIBAIOP SJUSISSISSE ‘WnjAse Qv -

UONED0||E %00} 9ABY UBIP|IYD WN|ASe ]|V -

SdA 8u} Ul pappaquis
Kjiny s1 11 @y "a19]dwod mou S| SJA a3 Jo uoljejuswajdwi 8y -

uoneoo||e Joj ssaooid Jesjo e dojprs( -

pajeoolje wnjAse Ov1 %001 -

wsuoua |
/Bunioyses; /IS0 /WD 0} S|qeIsuNA JA/USIPIIYO pienBajes
0} suoijesado ypm diysisupied Ui 3Jom 0} [y PUE 4GMN -

juswabeuew aseo Buiobuo
aInsua 0} Apjeam pjay sbuneaw Jojedlpu| SoUBWIOHa -

juswissasse Jad sAep ¢ Jo abelone ue yjm;
Xew sAep G UIYIM SJUSISSSSSE JO %00} Bulealeq -

Buiob-uo

G102/€0/10

ajdoad Buno
Jabeue|y 9oIAI0S

(LIv) wes | a3eju| wnjAsy oy} yum
diysuonejas Bunpiom aAjoays ysijqeisg

910z |udy Jo pus AQ panjosal aq ||IM JoJEW By “PIEMIO)

Buiob suonn|os pulj 0} WES)} SOUBWLIONA SSaUISNg ay} Yym sbuneaw
pey sey Jabeuejy 801AI18G 8| |090}01d UO SaIINDIYIP UONOS||00 Bjep
0} anp pasues|o Bulaq jo ssaoo.d ayy ui st suejd sAemyyed 1oy ejep ay

ue|d Aemyjed e oABY SI9ABS)| 1ED %8G -
saseo uado snid g}, ||B UO UOEDO|[E %00} S dISY] -

ueld Aemyjed aA10a))e Ue aABY SISAES| 31ed 3[qIbIj8 ||y "PIo Sieak
91 Jo abe 3y} J9A0 JA DV [[E O} PaJESO||B USS] SABY JOSIAPY [BUOSIAd -

‘a1ed Buines| ajdoad BunoA 1oy sewoojno sy aroidwi o)

SIoAB9)| 91e0 9|q

9 || = sue|d Aemuyyed 9,001 -
saseo uado snid g}, ||B = UOIEDO|IE %001 -

:Buiojiuopy eyeq Apespn.

9102/¥0/0€

S102/¥0/1L0

901MI9G 9|doad
Buno, g usipiIyD
Jabeuepy 3 OV
Jabeue|y 90IM18S

Pa}Jeo0||E JOSIAPY [BUOSIO]
B 9ABY |[|IM SIOABS| 81ED 8| JOAQ
“J9}I0M PaJedo||e ue SABY O} P|o Sieak
91 Jo abe 8y Jano UsIPIYd OV IV

(%4

ssalBoad u)

dnoub Buiyiom uonedioned ayy Aq

papoddns Buiaq si yoiym ‘seousiadxa yiom pue sdiysaonuaidde punole
Jabeue|y Bunualed dio) yum Bupiom ate gdA "senssi | JIN ayj uo
Jno Buiddays, /1ebeuely Buiuaied aye1odio) yim 31om 0} SA dYl Ulyim
uoidwey) "epuabe dnoib Buniop) s1ones] aie ayj uo sulewsas J 3N -

“a0noe.d anoidwi 0) UOISSaS Jomsue pue suoisanb
e apinoid o} pue Bujuiesy ueld Aemyyed ayepspun o} payooq dnoifb
s,91doad BunoA ,1no Buiddalg, ‘910z |udy ul payooq Aeq Aemy SdA -

9102 Yolre jo

pus Aq ejep ey} apIAcid O} WES) SOUBLLIOUS SSBUISNY "SIOAES| B1eD 10}
sueld Aemyjed Buipsebai ejep jo Ajjenb ayy anoidwi 0y Aeemiapun s HIOA\
‘SdA pue wes} ssuewlopad usamiaq aoe|d Buiye) sbunesw Apeap) -

UONEPOWILLODDE JO AJljIgeule)sns 3y} 308yd 0} pieog
Bunuaied dioD o} Jabeuepy 821AI8S dU) WOy soeqpasy Jejnbal st aiay] -

pieog bunualed dioD ayj jo dnoub Bupjiop a1e) Buines ayy Aq smainal
Je|nBas Aq uaxeuspun aoioeld pue souewuouad ] 33N jo Buuojuop -

"UB|d 90IAIBS SIEaA JXaU IO} SUOHOE WOl

IM UDIym suolepuawwodal parosdde pieog bBunualed dio) '9L0z
uer ul pieog bunualed dio) o} pajuasald pue psja|dwod podas Jayuny
“Jabeuepy 901M19S/IN L AQ AJYYUOLI-IG SUOHEPWIOWIODOE PAJBYS JO MIIADY -

ue|d Aemujed e oABY SI9ABS| 91D JO %8G Jey) Sajeslpul
EJep JUBLIND "IOSIAPY [BUOSISY PAJEIO||E UE SABY SIOAES| 91D ||V -

aoe|d u; suejd Aemyyed 2,08 -

pieog Bunuaied sjesodio) ay) jo dnoib
-gns siaAeaT ale) ay) Je paalbe Bulaq ale sjebley Aoy -

21D Ul 9ABST 10}
sue|d skemyjed pue uojepowiiosoe ‘| 33N Butiojuoy

9102/€0/L€

§10¢/L0/1L0

ov1l
19beuely aoInles

a1eD Ul 9AES7 40} SBWO2INO Bulroidw|

6'v

9102 994
jsod sabueyn

snjejg

suoay - ssaibouig

sjobie] Aoy

S9UO}SII\ PUB SAINSEI|\ SDUBWIOMIY

sjeq puz

sjeq Heis

pea

uogoy

39y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

ajdoad Buno, % 9y 10} sawooino Buiroidw) 1y wealys YIopm



BuiobuQ -
pajojdwo)

panay -
pajajdwon

painay -
pajojdwo)

painey -
pajojdwo)

9102 9°4

3sod sebueyn smels

0BqPa8) JOSN OAS JO MBIASI [enuue-1g "sBulesw ssaujsng
Je pamalAal pue [sued Yoea Je paje|jod Ajaunnol si Yoeqpaad -

Alonoaye pabieyosip Buieq st uonouny NQY -
20e|d Ul 8j0J UONEUIPIO0D [aued pajesipa( -

9oe|d Ul MOU S3499YD YO
10} SS9001d "WUBUI pasualiadxa e Ag pasanod Jsod JoSIApY [aued -

siequiaw [aued Jo/pue
9OIAJ9S BY) UM pjay aq o} sbuneaw ssauisng [aued [enuue-ig -

uonenbay pue SN uondopy pue Buleisod - G1.02/01/02
Buns)soy wis) Buoj uo uonelsiba) maN - G1.0Z/€0/9L

101 3j00gawoly) ‘uoisiold eleq - G10Z/€0/60

Alowi pauljwesass ssa004d Buew uoisoap NAY -

pajuswa|dwi
Joued o) 6ulob o} Joud spodal S 10} 198YsS YOBqPaS) YD -

padojansp swwelboid Buiuiely 89l

sbunesw
wea) 0} paJanijap suoljejoadxe pue sjuswalinbal jpued -

BJIAI8S 8y} pue siaquiaw

joued yym Buppiom diysieuped ul suswaAcIdW] [nyss82oNg -

padojenap
spodal Apapenb jaued wioyul 0} seseo [aued jo Bupjoel] -

|oued Jo s)yoam
Z uiynm N@y Aq paubis pue paje|dwod aie senulw [sued -

slaquisw [sued yim UoneSIUNWWOD aAoidwl
pue suomuaded a)e|nduio 0} pajuswa|dwi Wwa)sAs 21uoI08|g -

|aued 8y} Woyy suoisioap Ajawi Juswaldw) -

|loued yoes Jaye |aued
Buuslso4 pue uondopy Aq paje|dwos swioy yoeqpasd -

I0SIAPY [oued %

ONINIVYL TINVd NOILJOAY 8 ONIYILSOH | Pauljwesss pue pajeulpiood Buluonouny pue sseooud jaued - $80In0say [oued uondopy
Joued Bunsyso pue uondopy o} pajuasaid yiomiaded s,uaJpiyy ® Buns)so4 ay) Jo uone
:SMO||0} SB G0z Ul siaquiaw [aued 0} paaljep suolssas Bujuiel) - pauanlep A|inysseoons Buiuiel jpued - pue saseo ||e 1o} 99e|d Ul soueInssy Ayend -|  GLo9Q G102/€0/G) | Jobeuepy 9o1AIeS pue Juswabeuew ay) snoudw|| $'G
siseq Apjaam e uo
dnoub-qns eouewiouad AQ payoel) ale SI0)edIpu| SduBWIONad AdY -
syuswaoe|d jusuewsad
Jo1ybisiono pue Juswabeuew souew.opad paroidwi apiroid oy
Bunesw Jaxoel) sousuewlsad Ajeam jo uonejusws|dwi ‘siseq Apeam apew bBulaq uoisioap Aousuewlad wisy
e uo dnoibgns aouewlopad auy) Aq ejep jJo Aunnids panuiuo) -| buoj 0} Oy Buleq pjiyo auy wouy sAkep abeiane ul uolonpay -
s1a4e2 Jo [erosdde oy sejeasalul) oel) 0) papiaoid ejep ssnosip| eonoeld ul pappaquia sbuijesw ejep souewlopad Ajyuop - uopbBuliH
0} A|yjuow }98W 0} SNUUOD WEes| 9ousbl||9Ju| SoUBWIONSH/SD| - gLoz Ainp ul Oy 4o} sawoano Aousuewad o)
pajuswsa|dwi sjnpow uondope g9 -| Aq dnoiBgns souewiopad Aq ejep Alyjuow jo Aunniog - $90In0saYy panoudwi jo souapias pue Jybisiono
pJeoaloos uondope jsuiebe s,uaipjiyn Juswabeuew Buoss Bunuswa|dwi Aq <H
ojul Juswabeuew Jenbas apinoid 0} peaibe usaq sey jas ejeq - poaibe 195 eleQ - (5'g uonoe 0y Jajal) G0z aunr Ag paaibe jeseleq -| 9102/€0/94 | S102/20/SL | Jobeuely aoinies | Juswabeuew souewiopad aroidw|| €
aoe|d Bunje) aie smainal Jejnbas pue
uayepapun Buiag si saji OZ JOAC SJapIo Juswade|d || JO MaIASI Y - [
spaau o10ads S,pjIYd SY) }9SW pue [sUBd SIIN0SSY 0
0} $5800Y 9y} Aq pamalnal ale HGT JO apisino sjuswadeld ||y -
ue|d UoNOY SIY} BIA PaIOJIUOW 8] [[IM;
suoljoe dn mo||oj pue uozLoH uo aAl| ob |im ABajens ayl ‘GLoz Ainp
| pJeog Bunuaied dio) ayj pue wea] Juswabeuey Joluas Aq Jo
paubis sem Abajenig Aousiong ay] oAl mou si pue paroidde usaq
SBY ‘92IAI9S 3} Yim paleys usaq sey ABajes Aousioyng ayy -
901A19S 8U) Ul SBOPIOE(] }I0MaSED BANUEBISANS
ou aJe aJay "0} payinIoal Bulaq Jo PaISA0D JaU)Ie SJe SIIOUBDBA - sawoo)no Aousuew.ad
J0 Wbis1ano pue abus|ieyd }snqou sepiroid pue sonoeid
910z uer wouyjsod ul pue pajuiodde Jebeuepy 991AI8S JusuewLIdd -| Ul pappaquia Buneayy Buuojuop Aousuewsad Apybiupod -
910z Asenuer Aq 1sod ul yeis S9OINISS S,UaIpIIYD|  Sluswssasse ||e uo 9o1oeld yiom [e100s Ajjenb poob
‘G102 19quaAoN Inoybnoly) s1asIoAA [B100S Jusuewad Buninioay - SS0JOB JUSW}INIOS. YI0M [B100S Joj ued yim ul yul - JO 9oUapIAG sapIA0Ld Yiomawely soueInssy Ajlend -
18pow Qv
Jabeue|y wea] e Aq paianod aq 0} wes) Aleng 1sod jueoen JaA0o 0} pasn yess Aousby -| 510z 190 Aq Aemuapun yess Jusuewiad Jo JuaW)INIOdY - 8y} 10} 80IAI9S Juawaoe|d enjeA 1seq,
*(51.0z 1dag ui) Aousby Bulieisod juspuadapu] 8y} pue souel||y| e Juswaldwi pue ao1A1es uondopy
UOPUOT ISOAN BY} ‘UOIBIDOSSY JaJBD IS)SO- BY) JaLIq |[IM M pasijeul) sjuawyujodde G102 AIne Aq pajuswajdw pue pieog pue Buus)so ayy uiyym syuiod Ay
uaaq sey Aemyyed ayy 9ouQ "sbuyaLq yels seinbai je passnosip |Inyss900NSs 931y} - S1ebeuew wes) Jo Jusw}inIOaY -| Bunuaied ajesodio) ye yo paubis ABajens Aou: ng - 1e puewsap Joj ueld o} ‘Josfoud | |
aq [|IM PUB 90IAI9S B} UIy)M SIoBeuB|\ Wea] Yym paleys aq [m )| $90In0SaY ay) woly pajoadxe sjuswaroidwi
*G1L0Z AIne w1 Bunesy siebeuely Juelsissy Je pajuasaid sem Aemyjed Jopea JJe)s pue siapjoyae)s Asy 0} s,ualpiyy |y} UleUIBW PUB JOAIIOP
9oIAI9s 8y ‘910z Aseniga4 Aq pajuswa|dwi 81njonu)s adIAJeS |Ind - pue ] INS 0} pajussaid pue pajojdwod ased ssauisng -| pajeslunwiwod ainjonis Buiels pue Aemyjed ao1A19S -| 9102/€0/1L0 | §102/20/SL | 1ebeuely aoinieg 0} aInjonJis 9oIAI8s mau juswsdwi| z'g
uoisirold 901AI8S JO sisA|eue pue dnoibgns pad Aq ejep Ajyjuow jo Aupniog -
ejep aplaoid 0} S|ge a9 [|IM pue AI| S| 3jnpow S| uondopy -
Buns)soy pue syuswaJinbau A1ojnje}s yym aul Ul s1aed Jo [eaosdde
uondope Joj swaysAs juswabeuew souewlopad Jeinbal juswsdw - ajod sJobeuew | oy ejep Alyjuow wea | aouabljlelu| souewWIONad/SD] -
ul pappaquwa a.e sbunesw souew.opad ejep AlyJuop -
Jopow a21n8s adAjojoud 0} Hoyood Buyyeys JOH Jusws|dw - sauljapinb Alojnje)s ypm aul| ul |sued Buus)so4
Remyjed s,uaip|iyd ay} ol pajesodiooul pue uondopy 0} pajuasald aIe SJUBWISSISSE MO -
G102 Buraq [apow 9o1A19s pue pajuawaldwi adAjojold TOH - 901M9s 8y ojul Buiwoo
190 Aq paje|dwod pue pajedojle sjuswssasse Bulpuelsino 67 |1 - 109(0id Welto) syuow $90In0SaY SjuaWsSsasse mau pue Buipuejsino
pajedo||e sased 9 uyym |eaoidde Joy jsued Buls)so4 pue uondopy s ,uaipiiyd || Jo uona|dwod pue uopneso|e
OH PuE WeIo) yym aoia1es pabeuew e juswaldw -[jo %00} pajuawaldwi Ajjnjssedons aoiAles pabeuew Welo) - 0} pajuasald sjuawssasse BuIpue)sINo Jo %001 -| §102/20/SL | §L0Z/L0/S) | Jebeuely aoiniag 2INSUS O} [9POW DIAIBS MU Jolid| L'
suonay - ssaiboid sjabue) Ay S9UO}SI|IIN PUB S3INSE3|\ 992UBWLIOMAd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Mels pes uonay 19y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

uoisinoid uondopy B Bulisyso jo Ayjenb ayj Buinoidwy :g weasys YI0M



lejol

%0 %0

%001

onels

ssalboud u|

pajejdwon

abejusoiad
JaquinN
91/5102 10} SNOILOV 4O SNLVLS

pomaIAal A[aulnos 1e sajiw Oz JO SpISINo sjuswade(d ||y -

Alypuow aoe|d saxe) Buluaas uolew.oy

ayMn -

BuiobuQ -
pajejdwo)

9102 1das jo pus g abels ‘9,0z YdJe| Jo pud pajajduiod aq
0} | 96e)S "/ 1/91.0Z BULNp SIBIED 18}SO} OF JO JUBWHNIODY -

s)sod JueoeA JOA0D 0} pasn Jjels Aouaby -
syuswjulodde |nyssa00ns { - siabeuew wWes) Jo JuswNIody -

J8peaT pue 1AS O}
_Umucwmm._a pue _Umuw_arcoo 8INjonJjs Mau 10j ased ssauisng -

pa)o|dwo9 AN Joy BsIo1axa Bulial-ay -

sonoeud ul pappaquis Bunesyy Bulioyuoly Aousuewad -

a|ge|ieAe sjuswaoeld
13)s04 uopBul|iiH g1 Anjenb poob jo saquinu aseasou|

Hg1 Jo sajiw 0z Jo apisino paoed
lpidoad Bunok pue uaip|Iyo JO JaquINU BU} Ul UORONPaY e
sjuswaoe|d |ejuapisal

ul paoe|d ualIp|Iyo JO Jaquinu 8y} Ul UoIONPaY e
:sjuswaoeld Bulsysoy wis) Buo ul paseyd uaip|iyo
10} sumopyjealq Juawade|d Jo Jaquinu 8y} Npay -

INjoNJIS Mau ay} Ypum aul| ul sjuswaoeld Bulis}soy wisy
Buoj uy paoe|d uaip|iyo Joy Ajjigess Juswaoeld aroidw|

(%GG) @snoy-u1 0} (%G¥) S,v4| Jo oljel sonpay -

sjuswaoe|d Ja}so} asNoy-ui O} |, -

Page 50

dyVH Aq
paoe|dal Buiespy
[V BuiobuQ -

9102 924
3sod sebueyn

/1/910Z Ul spjnoyasnoy mau $90In0SaY V1 Jo sabuasjieyo
Gz anoidde o) si joble) ay) ‘HgT oy ABajenys yuswiinioas bulobuo pieog spaau xa|dwod YIm asoy) pue Qv s ,uaipiiyd pUE SpPaau 9SIaAIp By} }9aW
ue Aq paeojdas aq |jIm pue 8sojoe 0} buimelp si,0¢ dliSelUES, BY] - Bunua.ed ajelodio) o) pajuasaid ABsjens Aousoiyng - 19P|0 IO} SIBIED IB)SO} JO UORUBIAI PUE JUBWINIODY -| 91.0Z/E0/LE | G102/60/L0 | JoBeuely ao1AIag | 0) s1a.ed J8)so) HET Jo Juswdopaad| 9'
Juswaoe(d e Buyieme ueld aajjdope ue yyum usip|iyd ou ale a1ay] -
‘SuUl|peSp Yluow g syj ulypm
payolew ale Asy) ainsus 0} paiojiuow aq 0) Buinunpuod ale GLoZ
aunp woJy sased pue Aousuewlad Buirsiyoe Jo ueld Jesjo e aney
pue (dYVH) |dued $22In0say 0} $$290Yy uopbul|iH Aq paapisuod dnoubgns aouewiopad Aq ejep Ajyjuow jo Aunniog -
u9a( ||B 9ABY S9SED OUO)SIH “opew Buleq Joplo a1ed ay) Jo syjuow
21 ulyym sjuswaoeld Busysoy wis) Buo| ul pade|d aie uaip|iyd yaiym uswaoe|d Busysoy wis) Buo| ue o} yoyew e uo Buiposp
ur awiy ayy Buiroisdwi uo Buisnooy mou si Buigesw Aousuewad ay] - pue aoe(d 0} UNod e Buinigoal usamiaq awi) abesany e
Aiwey anndope ue o} yoyew e uo Buipiosp
Japio pue 2oe|d 0} UN0OS B BuiAledal usamiaq awr abelany e
Juswaoe|d Jo Jeak suo ulypm padeid G - pade|d ualp|iyd G| SL/7L0Z diysueipieng
‘pajuelb Buleq Japio Juswadeld ay) Jo Jeak suo ulyIm Ajiwey, |e1oadg asneoaq Qv 99 0} PASESD OUYM UBIP|IYD JO %, ®
aAndope ue yyum padejd Buteq uaip|iyo JO Jequinu 8y} ul 8sealou] - wey aandope yim ui buirow pue aieo oyul Buusjue
u9aM}aq SYUOW G| UBY) SS3| JIEM OYM UIPJIY JO % @
*10) Buipuly Ajiwey uondope Awey anndope sy ypm,
ale am Oym UaIp|Iyd § aJe aiay ) Yup ay) Buonpal Ajeaub siojeisy) ul Buinow pue a1ed Bulsjua pliyd usamiaq abelany e
Buueay jeuy ay} o} Joud ualp|yo Jo} saljiwey sAidope |enusjod apew Buiaq Japlo aleod 8y} jo Jeak paydope
Bunosjes e Asjanoeoid Bunpiom ale wes) Buipuly Ajiwey ay) - 1 ulynm Juswaoeld Je)soj wia) Buo| yim padeid ate Dy -|  Si9m Oym Jale Dy 9q O) 9SESD OYM USIPJIYD JO % e
:SI0}EOIpUI 801AIS £33 JO MaIAS) soueWIOuad JBINBaY -
*sjuswaoe|d aAndope 10j pajosjas Jo paydlew Jayyie ussq pJeoaI09s uondope [euoneu
aABY G|0Z Uer 0} Joud sIapIQ JUBWaoe|d 0} J03lqns uaIp|iyod ||y - ay) Aq painsesw se aouewiopad sy} ul jJuswaAoidw| - G102 1290100 Aq pajnioai Ajnj wea] -
$90In0SaY
*sal|lwe) aAndope Yym saydjew 1oy pajos|as Jo padeld Jayye usaq uopbBuliH ue|d 991AI8S TOH PUE WeI0) 89S ‘GL0Z s,uaipiyy 901AI3S aY) ulyym Buipuy Ajwey
Rousuewlad [[SSELITEY mou aABY UBIP|IYD PUB UIM J[ESP USS] MOU dABY Sased Bopjoeq |y - ul Q7 4o} sawojno Juswaoe|d Jusuewlad paroidw| -|  Anp Ag pajenjens pue pajsjdwiod ao1ases adAlojoid -| 91.02/€0/LE | SL0Z/S0/SL | 1oBeuepy aoneg | Jo sseooud pue uonouny ayy aroudwi| G'G
suonay - ssaiboid sjabue) Ay S9UO}SI|IIN PUB S3INSE3|\ 992UBWLIOMAd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Mels pes uonay 19y

smejs

~

¢ XIAN3ddVv

uoisinoid uondopy @ Bulidyso jo Ajjenb ayj Buinoidwy :g weasls YI0M



lejoL

%0

%EE

%29 abejuaoiad

ohels

ssaiboud u|

v JaquinN
pajajdwo)n

91/G10Z 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

“aouaNjuI
|euoneu pue juswabebus Japim Buimoys ‘seseo ozs Buiajoaur souepinb
|euoNeU UO Pa}NSU0D dABY HG OS|Y "99ualajal Jo suwiis) ay} Buiuyap
Ul Pa}INSUOD US] SABY JJBIS [ 2JaUM ‘d¥\YH PIoNPO.UI SABY S -

~

alesow Jejs ul abueyd aaisod e
pajelisuowap SUINPNO Jjels SJAD ‘Hels ||e woly uoneddiped Buimojjod -
Buipsenbajeg
uoljoe yuswanoidwi pue sabueyd |iejap ul uejdxa o} s,uaip|iyd
9OIAISS J1ay) Ul ye)s (e yim sbunesw sejnbal pjoy siebeuely 92IA18S IV - sbunesw juswabeuepy av s slafbeuew pue
90IAI8S JE JjB)S JO souepusje Jeinbey - aley 1JB)S YiM uonesIuNWWoD Jejnbas ybnoayy
BuiobuQ - 901AI8s 8y uiyym Bujuueld pue sabueyd Aey |e100g s,ualpliyD aled pue uofje)nsuod ‘Aousledsuely
EELITEGY  auipno o) pjay S)USAS UONEDIUNWWOD S8DIAISS SjoyMm Jejnbal ale aiay] - S9OIAISS S,uBIP|IYD WOy ASAINS JelS || 0} B)es asuodsal %0G - pIay sjuaAe soinIas ajoym Apapenp -| Bulob-uQ | G1L0z/40/1L0 av yym apew aq o0} sebueyo |y 9'9
910z |udy ul pajajdwos aq 0} SmalAal YAvd Jeak jo pu3 -
9OIAI9S BY) UIYNM saljljigisuodsal pue s8]0 JIay} Jo syuswalinbal
ay) Joj sjendoidde (4q) sueid Buiuiel) [enpiAipul SABY YE)S [|e 8INSUS 0}
Kemuapun suonoy ‘ue|d juswdojersq pue Buiuiel| 8o1A18S Juswaldw - Yavd J1ay) paje|dwod aney siaxiom [e100s paliienb Jo %001 -
ssalboid (podas siyy Jo swiy ay) Je paje||od Bulaq synsal Yorepy) %/ - 91 o4 *qol J1ay} jo syuswalinbal
uj, 0} ,BurobuQp %001 - €O ay} 0} ajendoidde s4Q| aAey siaxom [e100s payiienb %001 - uoisinadns gOd %001 -
- paja|dwo), %08 - 20 Buipsenbajes sjuawalinbai
wouy pabueyo %001 - LD siseq Alyjuow suolsiAiadns s,ualpiyd 901AI9S Yym Juswublle Jasesd pue| Y=
sey snjejg|ssaiboud uj :eouewopad uoisinadng - € UO SUOISIAIadNS 9A19081 0} SI3XI0M [e100s payyilenb JO %001 - J0 Aanijep pue aoueldwod %004 -| 9102/¥0/10 | §1L02/40/1L0 av juswidojenap [euoissajoid yels uliseaul| SRCY
Jodau siy} Jo swiy 8y} je paje||0o Buiaq sainbly - 910z UdIep e Q
%EY - GL0Z 1doS ® e
%9 - GLOZ UOIBN @
1191389 40 poob pabpnl( yiop - [
9102 UdJe JO pus 8y} Aq %08 ® [all
‘ssaiBoud ul s| juswanoidwi sonoeld uo Joedw ay} pue sease G10zZ Jequiaydas jo pus ayy Aq %0G e alen
90IAI8s Ul pappaquie Buiag st dy 8} JO 8j0J 8Y1 "GL0Z Uwniny Ul AjiAioe G10Z UdJe Jo pus 8y} Aq %Ge ® 008 s,uap]|
ssaiBoud uj JuBW)INIOa) utew 8y} Jo Yed se 0) paynioal usaq aaey sisod dy ||y - :18)}9q 10 poob pabpnl yJom Jo abejusdiad - "gonoeud spom [eioos panosdwi - 91.02/€0/10 | §102/S0/L0 av ¥'9
G102 Joquiadas Jo pus ay) Aq %06 e
G10g dunr ul pajuswalduwi Ajind 5102 G10Z Y9I JO pud 8y} Aq %G e
Y2Je|\ JO pua Jopea ay) 0} pajiwqgns pue psja|dwod ased ssauisng - :18)19q 4o poob pabpnliom o abejusdled -
alen ainjonys Juswoabeuew wes) Jojej)
paiay - *SI9)JOM [B100S JO SWes) (£ wnwixew) |lews yim sisbeuew ‘siseq Alyjuow 119€ Jipne pue uoisialadns ybnoay), |e100s s,ualpiiyd e Bunuawaidwi Aq sonoeud jo yoddns
pajsjdwon wea} Jo Jaquinu ayy Buipuedxa Aqg Ayjigejunoooe Jales|d JaAlep o - € UO suoIsiAIadns 9A18081 0} SIaXI0M [e100s payilenb Jo %001 -|  JuBISIan0 Juswebeuew Jo Juswainses| -| GL0z/90/10 | §102/S0/L0 av pue jybisiano Juswabeuew poob ainsug| €9
abueu 1ab6.e) UM 8onpal 0} doe(d Ul SUOIOE pue }abiey ueyy Jaybiy
SWEs)} UONOBJO0Id PIIYD/PBSN Ul UBIP|IYD YiM Speojase) }as jabie}
Ulyym pue a|ge)s ale Bulsiso @ uondopy pue a21AI8S s,8|doad
BUNOA ‘a4eD Ul UBIP|IYD ‘JUBLISSSISSY @ [E118)9Y Ul SPEOJaSED -
ajes uaup|iyo Buidaay isjiym Ayaonpoud
pue jndybnouyy aaroidwi 0y sased Buluuni-6uol ||e Bulojuow S| dHVH - 195 Ja64E)} UIYYM S| pue /1/9| Je d|qels
paulewal Sey S8OIAISS S,UBIP|IYO SSOIOE PEO|ISED abeIaA. 8] - 21 = siaxjiom [e100s payienb AimaN -
"Wes} 90UBWIOHDY alen
BuiobuQ - ssausing ay} woly ndul yum s,\INS pue uoisirsadns Buunp paioyuow pJeog aoueuopad 8| = SIoxIoMm [e190g S uaIpIIYD paoueleq pue d|ge)s aie SPeojased
CEIEIGITERY  aue speojajsed ||y (81 10bue)) g1 Je buibesane Ajuaiuno ale speojase) -[ 1 Apjoam paiojiuow die S1a)Jom [e[oos paljlienb Joj speoT ase) - |e1oos paliienb Joj peojased abelany -| Bulob-uQ | 5L02/70/1L0 av Buunsua Aq aonoeud }saq poddng| z'9
uaIp|Iyo 4o} sue|d SSIURNIOS PUE SPUSWHWWOD
|eroueuy pue puewsap ‘sdueldwod abeuew oy [sued anbiun 4yvH -
51IOM pajeso|jeun oN -
syuawanoidw 821A18s Ul Bupnsas
ale pue aoe|d ul ale sjuswabuelie Buloyuow Juswabeuew Jenbay -
SWea) JUSWISSISSE JO UOISIA0Id B} IO} ,90IAIDS
pabeuew, e Jo uonejuswa|dwi ayy Ag Jow Buiaq S| puewsap enx3 - sased AIojnje)s ||e Jo uoieso|e %001 -
|apow ,80IAI8S
Aemyjed s,uaip|Iyd 8y} SSOIOE pUBWSP Pajoadxa ay) Uo Paja|dwod YJOAN - Sojel [euoljeu UM Sajes puewap Hg ewyouag - pabeuew, ay) Jo SSBUBAIOYS JOJUON - alep
BuiobuQ - [e190S S UaIPIIYD puewap pajoadxa yum [apow Bulyers
pajajdwon S10Z aunr Ul kemyjed a1e [B100S S,usIpliyd Sy} pajuswaiduw - HE1 ulym asi0iexe puewap e aje|dwio) - [opow Aemured s,usIpliy0 Juawaidwi -| §102/60/L0 | §102/70/L0 av ay) Buiubije Aq sewooino Jepaq poddng| 19
«m%a—.wuom_wm_: 5 snjejg suonoy - ssaiboid sjobie] Aoy S3UO)SII\l PUB SAINSEIJ douUBWIOLIdd | 3jeq pul | ajeq Hels pea uonoy 3y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

sjuawabue.e Juswabeuew aspoesd parosdwi pue Bupjiom Jo sAem mau Buippaquig :9 wealls YIopM




9102
dy Aq paja|dwod a4 [|Im MaIASI YD |IN} W “SI8UOI}oRId Judwaroidw|

BuiobuQ -
pajejdwo)

“UBIp|IYd 10} W00 parcidwi pue sopoeld

‘SyjuoW Xis AI9AS Bjep pue 3oeqpas)

juswanoidwi sjowoud pue

Bujuueld ainny wuoyul 0y Bulules|
pue a2p0e1d poob ybnouyy passiyoe
syuswanoidwi Burelodiodu ‘8o1nI8s,

paipay -
pajajdwo)n

panay -
pajejdwo)

paunas mou IS

BuiobuQ -
pajajdwo)n

~

BuiobuQ -

9102
iqo4 3sod sabuey?)|

aon9eld 8y} ybnouy) siseq A|yyuow e uo sisuonioeld Yo wodj indul 18)18q ‘uonoe pauueld ‘uonos|al ojul AjANOR soueinsse| soueinsse Ajenb Jo MalAsl painjonis B uni M wes | JeBeuepy 8y} $s0J0E SWa)sAs soueINSSY
Bulobuo pue jusnbaly palinbas eABY S8INONIIS WES) PUB PaU 82IAIeS Ayjenb o16s)e.is Buiuiny Joy eoeld Ui ssedoud 1sngou soueInssy Ayenp ayp Jo yoddns ay) yim swesl |1/| 91.02/¥0/0€ | GL0Z/60/L0 90IM8S VO Ayenpd Jo sisAjeue pue uone|od| 92
5102 499000
ul 9aIWwWo) ay} o} Juam podai ayepdn uonejuswaldwi ABayens 389 -
2oe|d ul sue|d pue SJUBLUSSISSE YSLI PUE PadOEI) SASED %00} -
‘G0z das Aq papiooal sue|d pue juswssasse
$9SEO 38D Yoel) 0} pasn ale sbunessw JyN pue ISYIA AJUIUO - S 9AN08YS dABY ||B PUB PaXOel]} S9SeD 38D JO %001 -
*SUI9OU0D 3§D Buipsenbajes
510z Iudy| 0y Buipuodsal pue BuiAuspl uaym 9onoeld pue 9oUspYUOD|  SpUSJ) [BD0] PUE [BUOHEU UJIM SUI| Ul SUISOUOD JO [9A3] s,uaJpiiyd |000j0.d Aemeuny pue uosiad
Ul payoune| [020j0id Aemeuny pue uosiad Buissiiy pue ABajes)s 350 -| dojersp o} sjeuoissajoud |je ajqeus [|im Jey) ABajens 380 V! 2y} ainseaw 0} JapJo ul ejep 387 Jo Juswdojeaad -| 5102/60/L0 | §10Z/L0/L0 av Buissiy pue ABajess 380 youne| G/
'GL0Z dog Aq mainal syuawanoldwi ainbai
pa1a|dwod %00 | sem ssao0id SIy} G1.0Z 990 IV "SMaIAaI julod-piw B 8ABY [|IM UBIPIIYD JaYY PaN0O0T %001 - ey} seale aonoeld Buibus|ieyo
juiod-piw Bupiojuow 1oy ssao01d sy} Buimairal a1om am G0z 1des Iy - Jabeuepy pue aopoeid poob Buowoid
sBuljesw soueinsse 001MI9S Buimainey! Apus)sisuod sainsse Ayenb jeyy
sBunesw wea) Ajyyuow Buunp s,04| Aq pamainay - "ualp|IyD JBYy paxoo Joy sawodino paroidwl| Ajenb Ajyjuow je smainal Jexoel| uonnjosay andsiq -|51.02/60/10 | §L0Z/70/1L0 |pue Buipienbajes | ao1niag Buimeiney jsnqol e ainsug| 47/
ue|d uonoe ay) eIA suonoe Juswaldwi pue aaibe s,NINS
pue siebeueyy aonoeld "sesodind Aunnios pue Buliojuow Joy spuowwiS
JJ|D puUE 2ANN9SXT JOIYD dY) O} PaINGUISIP si Lodas puas Jipny -
100} ypne 998 Buisn paya|dwiod sypne a|i ased %001 ‘GL0Z Ae woud -
s)jpne a|lj 8sed Jo uoa|dwod Joj soueldwod %001 ‘GLOZ |udy wold -
sBunesw soueInssy Ajend Ajyjuow Je paiojuoi -
sbBugaw uoisialadns jo uonejuswa|dwi
308Ud puUE JO}UOW O} |00} JIpNe Ue Se pasn Jayoel) uoisiaiadns AJYjuop - pawuwelboid se
paje|dwod a1e sppne paway} Jo %001 9102 dy Ag -
|00} Jipne djuoI}o8|d pue ABojopoyiaw
pne ayodsaq Buisn pajs|dwod sypne oewsy) Alyyuow-ig “pliyo |00} JIpNE 21U0I}OB[d
3y} Jo 9210 By} pue uoisiAtadns ‘Buijew uoisioap/ybisiano Juswabeuew Buisn paje|dwoo sypne aji 8sed %001} 510z Ae|y woid -
‘salbojouolyd ‘syuswssasse Buipnjoul souewiopad 3oel} 0} siseq Ayjuow ‘Rem snoioBu e ul Juswabeuew pue uoisiniadns Nl
€ uo seale olj10ads uo ejep sapiaoid |00} Jipne OIU0J}O3[] *|00) JIpNe B]y Ajiep ojur yipne woly Buiules| sonoeid pue Aupnios S)Ipne ajl 8sed 1abeuepy
sey uonoe siy [LEEIE Mg oseo oluonoale ay) Buisn sjipne Aouabe ajbuls 8)e|dwoo 0} siebeuew |y -| paqwa o} siebeuew aonoeid poddns [im jeyy yoeoidde uy|  jo uonajdwod Joy aoueldwod %00L §10Z Iidy wold -[9102Z/€0/LE | S10Z/70/10 OIS YO awwelboid ¥pny mau youne] m.WD
G10g Uer souis sjipne
Aypuow ypm aoueldwod %001 ‘Aemiapun swwelboid ypne AJYUop - O
yodai siy) Jo awi) ay) Je paje||od Buleq saunby - 9L0Z Ydie e Dnld
Ja)aq 4o poob pabpnl %8y - G10Z 1das e
Japaq Jo poob pabpnl %9y - GLOZ UdIEIN @
:18)38q 10 poob pabpn( yiom Jo abejusdied -
SIBUE)S MaU J0} $s900.d UONONpUI
sy} Jo Wed s siy) ‘Jayund “Jauonnoeld juswaroidw| o1joeId aY)
Aq pasanijep Bulaq pue 6|0z |udy piWw Ul PAOUSWIWOD SPIEPUB)S 821}oeld
mau uo sdoyssiom pue Buiurel 8zis ayg jo awweiboid buiobuQ -
X-l] EIA SI9YIOM [EI00S
|le 0} 3|qe|ieA. Mou ale pue G| |Udy G| Uo payoune| pue jo paubis
Buluueld aie) e
uaip|iy) o3 SySIA o 910 UdIBIN %08 @
Sue|d uonosjoid pliyo e S10Z Jaquisydes Jo pud auy Aq %0G ®
JUBWISSOSSY PUE [BLISJOY © *90IAI9S By} 510z Yol Jo pus ay) Aq %S¢ e iebeuey
110} SpJEPUB)S 9001 MO -[SSOIOE PAUIBISNS PuB PaouapIAS 9o1j9.Id JO pIepuE)s ,pooD), Jayeq Jo poob pabpnl suom Jo abejuadiad | 910z/c0/LE | GLOZ/Y0/LO ERIIVEIAY o) SpJepuUB)S 8o1joBId Mau youne| gz
PIIU2 8Y} JO &
OV PuE 49 0} 103[qns uaipjiyy e
SUUOW 8| JOAO Joj sueld Uo uaaq SABY OUM UBIP|IYD
sue|d yo uae} uaipjiy) e
1§10 98 ul paje|dwod sypne 4o -
Bunjew-uoisioap ay) Jo ssausjeudoidde
Jo Jipne ybnouy) pawnyuod sem siy] ‘sinoqyubiau [EonSHElS
INo yym aul| ul a1e premsoy Buiob Ayoedeo pue puewsap pajoipaid auy
SMOUS Mou Jey} sainbly 49 ul uononpai ajeudoidde ue usaq sey aiay] -
Hodai siy} Jo aw ay) Je paje|jod Buleq saunby - 9L0Z YoIep e
%8Y - G10Z 1das ® 'suerd
%9 - §1L0Z YoIelN ® uonoe Jesjo Buidojosp ao1nI9S BY) SSOIOE Juswaoidwl
1181399 10 poob pabpn( yiom jo abejusdiad - AAUP |IM sBuipuly @oueInssy Ajend AJUIuop -
G10Z uer aouls aoueldwod JIipne %00} - 910Z YoIe|N %08 @ 90noe.d Jo spiepuels:
G10z Jaquaydag jo pud ay} Aq %05 e ,poob, paquia 0} swwelboid
G10z Iudy | uo paydsune| 91.0z/S L0z o} swweibold ypny *90IAIS By} G10Z YoIBIN Jo pus ay) Aq %GE e iabeuey JIPNY PUB }I0MBWEI 4 S0UBINSSY
CBEILITEL Y pue 610z [udy | payoune| pue yo paubis yiomawel aoueinssy AJl[enp -[ssoioe paule}sns pue pasusplAs ao1joeid JO piepue)s ,pooo), :19)38q 10 poob pabpn( yiom Jo abejusdiad -|9102/€0/L€ | SL0Z/¥0/L0 3INIBS YO Ajjend mau jo uoneyuswaidwy| |2
suopay - ssaiboid sjabie) Aoy S9UOJS3|IN PUB SAINSEaJ\ 9UBWIONId ojeq pu3 | sjeq Hels pea uopoy 4

snjels

¢ XIAN3ddVv

aoueinssy A)ijenpd aAoayT 1/ Weal)s YIoM



lejoL

%0

%L

%98

onels

abejusoiad
JlaquinN

91/5102 104 SNOILOV 4O SNLVLS

Page 53

pasijeul Buiaq sem podal ypne sy} ayepdn siy} Jo awn

AU} 1V '91.02 g9 Ul 99€(d 00} PIYd U} JO SOI0A B} UO JipNE dljeway) v -

pajo|dwod usaq Sey SeoUBIBJUOD UOHISI0Id PIIUD

pue smalnay DV ul uoliedionled s,a|doad BunoA pue ualp|iyo yoed] -

9102 Yole ul 49 Joj pue

G10zZ Bny ul Dy Joj paonpoJiul sem yaiym (Juiodmaip Buioeidal) jopow

“BuIjew UoISIoap Ul SMAIA Jlay) 9pNjoUl PUE 8210A S,PlIYD Sy}

9102 UdJeIN Aq %001 ‘SUOISalIN

(5102
dag) Bunjew uoISIoap Ul 9210A S,p|IYD SU} SOUIPIAS

sue|d uoloajoid pIyD pue suejd a1ed Jo Jpny -

Jabeuepy

Buiew uoisioap jo syoadse

SMaIA S,p[Iyo Buiouapias pue 901AI8S BuIMBIASY| [|B Ul PRIBPISUOD 1B SMBIA 118U} Jeu}
ssaiBboud u| M3U 8y} S| MaIASYA ‘@oe|d Buiye) aie Dy pue 49 Joj uoneynsuo) -  JapIsuod SuoljusAIaiul dJom [e1oos pue sueld |le ainsus o] | Buns|dwod o) ssuodsal pasealoul 89s |IM MaIASYAIN -(9102/€0/L0 | SL02/1L0/1L0 | pue BuipienBajes | jusapias si )l Asuinol s,piiyo ybnoayy| 22
ges .w%%ww_w:m: 5 snjejs suonay - ssaiboid sjabue] Aoy SBUOJS3|I PuUe SINSEI\ ddUBWIOMdd ajeq pu3 | ajeq Meis pea uonoy 19y

¢ XIAN3ddVv

aoueinssy A)ijenp aAoay3 1L Weal)s YIoM



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



%0 %8 %26
0 3 L
e)o e ssaiboud uj a|d
SNOILOV 40 SNLV1S

€ XIAN3ddVv

slabeuew Jiay) ypm sue|d Juswdojaaap Juswabeuew a}a|dwod 0} siebeuey aIAIBS ||V -
‘vavd/
ssaiboud uj siabeue|y wea] jo poyod yusuewlsad ueld Juswdojanap 18y} Ul pajelodiooul souewlopad Jo saunsesw Jes|d yum aonoedd| z|
9y} JO JuBWINIOAI |NJSS80NSs BuIMO||0) ‘{7 JOUEND Ul 9OUSWIWOD ||IM pue siabeuew a9y} Hoddns o0} s1ebeuew |je Joj pajejdwios aq o} ue|d juswdojarap juswabeuepy
|le 1o} (BUUSH WOI)) paUOISSILIWOD Udaq sey Buiurely Juswdojanap juswabeuely -
%/G Je 9oUBPUSYE JUBLIND B} YJIM ‘payoune|
sem ubledweo juswyinioal sy} aouls Ajipea)s pasealoul sey sejebajep Jo Jaqunu ay] -
pajeidwod L3uiod 0} Jajey swwelboud ay) oyuo yejs Buisixa Bupjooq siebeuely wouy b
Jo ssao0.d w04 sJauE}S MAN 8y} ybnouyy pusyie o} sayebsjep s}oadxa / sajiAUl puB Yjuow
AKiana suns swwelboud ay) G0z Alenuer ul payoune| sem awwelboid uoonpul Aep ¢ v -
‘suoisiAladns Jo AIaAllop 8y} Yim Jueldwod %00} SEMm 391AI8S 8y} 91,02 994 IV -
‘sanss| Aouajadwod yum Buiiesp ul ysnqod
Jaypny Aue auljoap jou seop aouewiopad : : :
G auns o uoye oo e pUE UIECKD 5q T OGSO Aue pue Ao o o 0 eeses oot soueLad pue Bupicos Subriou]  OAD
Bunes|y si1abeuely 8o1n18S 8y} 0} pajuasald s| podal v siseq Jejnbal e uo aoe|d buiyey 1op P! g %00} } PapPeq q 0} ong = S e
ale suoisiatedns Jayaym Jojuow o} pasn Buiaq si yolym aoejd ui Jaxoed} uoisiaiadng -
snjejs 9102 IdV Y3 Je ssaiboid uondy ozmv
U

pajajdwod

peajajdwo)

pajajdwod

peajajdwo)
pajejdwo)n
abejusoiad pajejdwon
JaquinN pajajdwon

pajajdwon

pajajdwon

snjels

Juawdo|aAdp BDUOPIOM 1| WEd)S YIOM

£ 'Spaau [enplAlpul
90IMBS BU} OJUI PaPPaGUIa US] SeY pue GLOZ AINnr ul pajejdwiod Buipoddns si 81njonu)s J9aIed aINsUs 0) pappaqa aq 0} Aemuyied Yo [ewosg| 6
“wisy-buo| uopbulljiH Ul ulewal o} siaxiom paliienb Aimau asay} abeinoous
3SAYV 0} Hoddns Jo Jayjo pedueyua pue payipow e sapnjoul swwesboid uononpul ay | 0}1n0 }8s SjuslaINbal PUE SPIEPUE]S JESID Y)IM ‘POPPaqUS 84 0} Jjejs paylienb| g
Aimau |je oy poddns (IS AY) JuswAhojdw3 ul ses A papoddng pue passassy
PaONPOJIUI SEM )i 90UIS ‘abpajmouy J1ay) ajepdn
Aipes)s asealoul 0} sanjuod sajebs|ap Jo Jaquinu sy} ng sduepusle uo pajoedul saey 0} UOONPUI JBYsaLa. B BUIAISOSI JJElS JUSLIND )M 80UB|dWOD %00) SASIYdE 0}
SJUSWILUWOD YoM A}101d JOASMOH *POJIAUL USSG SABY SIS}IOM MBU %001 GL0Z Uer souIs pue ‘aooeid piepue)s se pappaquud a4 0} JSYIOM MaU AI1SAS 1o} Ss8001d uoionpu|
q d ‘ue|d yuawanosdwi ayy yum
89B|d Ul pue pa1sjdwod BUI| Ul 8DIAIBS BU) JO SPBBU 8y} }8aW 0} AJBA|IBp 0} yBnoy; sseooud Juswynoay| 9
*0}o poddns ‘yuiom gOd ‘uolsiaiadns jo yoed
20ed ul pue pajejdwon 8y} Ul paulejuoo uojeue|dx3 “eoe|diiom ussoyo ey} se uopbulliH Buuspisuod| ¢
sjued|idde uaym aouepinb pue uopewJoul JUBAS|a. |[E Ulejuod o} syoed jueolddy
991Mn8s paysijod ‘[euoissajold
e Buujof ase Asy) jey) |99} sjuediidde eijusjod ey os yoeoidde Joop Juoly, pauyal "JOYJOAN\ [BID0S B JO 904 U} JO SUOIjE}0adxa pue Jayo ueo uopbulliH jleym|
e Juawajdwi pue 8)sgam Jno dojeAap 0} BUUSd U)M Buiyiom usaq aney YH pue SJAD Jo Buipuejsiepun poob e aney o} sjuedljdde aAjoadsoud ajgeus o) sjisgam pajepdn
swwesboid Juswyinioal ayy Jo
Jed se pajuswaldwi pue padojaaap usaq aney sjsod pajabie) oy Aemyjed Jaaied mau ay | alenb doj ay) uy st uopBUIH 21nsua 0} Jojjo pue Aemyjed yiom [e100s pasiney| €
G10z 1das ul s1o)iom [e100s payiienb Aimau pue payijenb
Kojdwae o0} uBledwed [euoijeu B yIm ‘G0z IsnBny aouls Aemiapun uaaq sey Juaw)inioay 4ers Jusuewwiad Joj ubleduwies Juawyinioal [euoleN| g
Aujgejunoosoe euoissajold Jaieajo apiaoid pue
SOIIBS BU) OJUI PAPPqWS USRG SEY PUE GLOT AInf Ut patejdwiod uoisialedns pue poddns pasueyus Jayo o} aanjonus Juswebeuew Japey jo uonejuswadwy| ¢
9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

JusWdojdaABP 92I0{ION (8| WEdl}S YIOM

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



abejusoiad

JaquinN

el ssaiboud uj [EIET(C(TT]:5)

SNOILOV 40 SNlvlis

€ XIAN3ddVv

Page 56

‘Ueld 92IAI8S /1/910C
ssaiboud u] oy} Jo Hed wloj |Im YIoMm SIy ] "DV Jo} JoBeueyy 921AI8S Mau By} Aq pamalaal Buiaq s Yiom ‘SH9OM 71-Z| JO abelane ue ul pasaaliap aq [Im diom sbBuipasooid-aid| £
sbuipaaoo.d-aid Buuoyuow pue Buiyoel) ‘BuaAljap 4oy ssao0id ] "paralyde jou Jabie |
‘dn paddaeys Buiaq paiyy e pue poddns Alea
sselboudiuj Buiobuo 0} umop Buidde)s SpJIY} OM) )M SYIUOW Z -6 10} SIAISS B} Ul Ulewal sajjwey 43| 9
pajojdwio) *(z Jaquinu 0} Jaja1) saljiwey Auew Joy ‘Woddns Apes o} umop Buidda)s S
uoido 3suly 8y} 81 S2IAI8S UORUSAIBIU| AlJET ‘WES) JUBLUSSASSY PUE S|eLIdoy au} UIYNAA Ajuolew jsen ay} yum syjuow G Jo sBeISAE UE 10} 8OIAISS BU} Ul Ulewal salliwe) NIO
pajojdwion Juswabeuew “(uooy paysjO [enpisay) “Bunjew-uolsioap Jajeq b
ploysaiy) pue Aousjsisuod Jo S|aAs| ybiy sajessuowap Buiyew UuoIsioap Jo MaIASY pue sexoInb o} Buipes| pue ‘@210A spjiyd ‘Ajenb poob 8jed|pul JUBWISSBSSE JO SHPNY
> %M%m:EWO ‘BuloBuo S| YI0Mm SIy | "9[BOSAWI} UIYIM Pa}o|dIod SJUSWSSISSE JO % /6 ‘(uonoy palsjO [enpisay) "sajeosawil} ulyim paja|dwod aq 0} sjuswssasse ||y ¢
‘siseq
JejnBal e UO pasojuOW S| SIY) PUB WES) uonuaAIalu| AeT sy 0) umop Buidde)s saijiwey jo (MO Bunn: e 1UBWSSesSE 150d ‘SI0BIL0D
pajajdwo) sJaquinu Jeajo saAIb yolym sjgejiene si ejeq ‘Juiod }sajes pue jsaljiea ay} je umop buiddas HOM NI / D DULIND pUe Jusw ¥ 1oEIU z
ale sa||lWey aINsua swea) 3Jom [e1oos ul s\ L Aq Buipne BuiobuQ "poddns uouanisiu| 1e) a1ea [e00s ul sjulod Aoy Je umop Buidde)s saljiwey ul esealoul Ue oq [|im 8iey L
Aue3g o) pawiajal saljiwe) 0} piebal yyum uasl dABY pUe JUS]SISUOD aq O} SNUIUOD SIaqUINN
‘panaiyoe soueldwod
pajejdwon 10} 19618} %00 "PsEMIO) BuloB JuswNoOp pual) Jipne Ajyuow JNo Ul pauodal ag [|IM YoIym ‘ysel pue abel] woly Bupjew-uols|oap Jua)sisuod Bunesipul eyep pue sypny 1
1O s)nsai ay} ‘|00} Jipne d1uoJjos|e A|yiuow ay) Jo Jed mou s| Bujew-uoIsioap Jo JIpny
snjeys 9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

JUBWISSISSY '@ S|ellajay pue HSYIN ‘@belr] Buiroidwy g wealys YIOpM

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



abejuasiad

JaquinN

ejs ssalboid u) [SEIG L)

SNOILOV 40 snlvlis

€ XIAN3ddVv

Page 57

‘Jjels Joj yiomauwely Bulules| ay) Jo ued aq |jim sBuipuyy

ssaiboud uj Buiobuo puE ‘YoBqPaa) Josh 90IAI9S ¥99S 0} WSIUBYISW Pays!|ge}ss Ue aq [im aiayl| 8
: ‘sdn-dajs / sumop days Ajawi} pue sjipne u Jadns ‘yoeqpas) jjeis ‘oeqpoasy

pajaidwon paja|dwioo supne %004 ‘s)pne Aq paouspIAe Si SIY) pue aAoidwi SjusWSSasse Jo Ajenb pue ssaulewn ayl| £
_UEId SAIAISS /1/910C ‘uaJp|Iyo Joj suols|oap Ajowiny

ssaiboud up [y} Jo Ped wuoy [IM YJoMm Siy| "DV Joy Jabeuey ao1A18S mau sy} Aq pamaiaal Buiaq si yJom - gy 4 : i 9
sbuipaaoo.d-aid Buuoyuow pue Buiyoely ‘BuldAljap 1o} ssao0id Y] "pParaIyde Jou jabie | B10W JoN|[OP O} B[EISBLUN 303M ¥-Z| B O} Jom am sBuIpaecoid-aid Ul ssijiwey Jod

pajejdwon ‘Bunse) aoueljdwod yipne Jo Jed se pamaiaal pue paje|dwod saibojouoiyd ‘Aijenb poob jo pue pejejdwod saibojouoiyd Iy| g

pajodwon paje|dwo) "S)USISSasSe Uo Jno |lo Bulutes| |
‘Juswanoidw Jaypny

pajojdwon ‘SWea) 0} PAJEJIUNWIWOD PUB USNEHaPUN Bulyew-uoisioap Jo JIpny 10} sease pue Aous)sisuod ‘a1 uonisod ajep 0} dn sn aAIB |Im yalym ‘GLoZ Iudy| €
104 pauueld si (spjoysaiy} 1s8}) DdD| O} PUE JOOP Juod) Je BUIEW-UOISIOSP 4O JpNY

‘Ue|d 818G £1/91.0Z @Y} 0} ybnouy patied
ssaiboud uj aq [|IM S[ellajel pasEaIdUl U0 SNJ0L “MBIASI Japun st SJAD Ul }sod 8y} Jo uoedo| ay | "asealoul [|Im s|essapel Bulieisoy ajeAld| ¢z
“Jo¥IoM [e100s Buliaisoy ayelid pajesipap ay) 0} pojeSO|[E ||e a1e sased Bulie)so) ajenld

oJep\ pus Aq 9 .
Hodau S|y} Jo awiy ay} 18 paje|j0o Bulaq saunbly - 910Z USIEN mvomw__‘wmw_wam_\m,_ wcm >m %mm .

ssauboud uj 191194 10 poob pabpnl %8y - 10z 1deS e G102 UJe pud ouy Aq %Ge e | b
Jayeq 1o poob pabpnl %9t - GL0Z YoIen @ : Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl yiom jo abejusoled

:Buipelb uy Juswanoidwi Buimoys sypne ase) - :
snjeys 9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

Swea] YIOM\ [BID0S S,udipjIy)d 3y} ulypm aooelad yJom [eioos Buiroidw) :¢ weasys YoM

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



%0

%95

%by

ssaiboud uj

SNOILDV 40 SNlvlis

€ XIAN3ddVv

abejuaoiad

JaquinN

Page 58

“ue|d @2IAIBS /1/9102
ssalboud u] oy} Jo Jed WOy [|IM YoM SIYL "Dy 10} JoBeue|y 92IAI8S MaU U} Ag pamalnal Bulaq s| YJom "SH99M 1|, JO oBelaAe Uk Ul PaIaAIlep a4 ||Im som sBulpasooid-aid |Iy| 6
sbuipsadoid-aid Bunoyuow pue bunioel) ‘Buliaaljep 1oy ssedoid sy “pansiyoe jou 1ebie|
‘(suosiad pajosuuo) ‘09S ‘uondope ‘Bulielsoy
R o Buiobuo WJ9)BUO| ‘WY WINJBI) SYIUOW gL-Z| UIL}IM SSWO00IN0 PooB A3 UIP|IYD Joyy pasoo| &
ssaiBoud uj ‘pa|qe} aq 0} synsal ‘pasijeuly Buiaq sem podal Jipne ayy “Buyew-uoisioap Jepeq pue N
ajepdn siy} JO awWi} 8U} 1Y "91.0Z god ul 80e(d 400} PIIYO Sy} JO SDI0A BY} UO JIPNE DlEWaY) Jayoinb 0} Buipes| pue a910A spjiyo ‘Ajjenb poob ajesipul suejd aJed Jo sjpne Jo %08
“19buous ale sal} Buisnoy ‘painjonlys aiow si [pued buisnoH
slanea aue) ay] ‘Buisnoy |eroos Joy Aldde o} 9|qibije aq |Im sieak Q| 104 uopbi
ul Buial] usaq Jou aney Aay) Jeyy ssajpiebal A A1ans jey) papnjouod sey juswuedap .
ssaiGoidiu] BuisnoH ay} ypm sbunes|y "dA 40} sawayds yiom je buiyool Jebeuew Buiualed syelodio) sawodjno Buisnoy pue |33 40} 8juenb doj oq [im ouewLOd| 9
*sanss| | 3N SSaJppe 0) uohuasjul AeT pue SOA UNM YOAA “sinolAeyaq Buibusiieys
s,dA Pue suoijepowodoe jo Ajjige)ins Buissaippe usyenspun aie sbunesw buisnoy paieys
ssaiboud uj ueld Aemyjed e aAeY SI9AED| 318D %8G 'saA109(qo Jeajo yum ueid Aemyjed B aABY [|Im SI9ABS| 9IED JO %00L| G
pejejdwon 9102 994 o pus ‘(LoD ayy b
10 Se (sased Jualnd) S)eam Gz aAoqe Isnl s| sased O1d abesany ‘sbunesw O1d Jenbey Aq payoads ssajun) syeem gz ulyim paje|dwiod aq [|IM SaSeD sulNnO Me 21iqnd (1Y
‘swea) DD 8y} Ulyym sawodino Ajawiy pue buluueld aieo
pajeduio pansIfOY Ul BUI{EW-UOISIDaP JUSISISUOD JO 9OUSPIAS UM poob Buiesipul ejep pue sypne jo %08| €
'S,Vd WOJj palinbas a1aym SUOE)NSUOD SABY d A JO HOUOD SIY) ‘SSIISUMLaASU oY dIeD oW syuswanbal
pajajdwo) BuineaT ay} Japun Ainp Alojnje}s e OS[e S| Yolym ‘s,Yd Pajeooljje aAey jou op Ing ‘S, MS ; z
POYEOO||e SABY SPI0 1ESA /1 B 91 %00k SMS POUIEND 0} pajeaoye e S350 DY I Aioynjels Jiayy aney ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyd pue pajeso|je sased Qv IV
pajsjdwon SdA 10} 8| PUE SWES} DI 40} ] SI YdIym oBeISA. 8D1AIBS BU) UIYNIM BIE SPeojase) "J93I0M [e100s palijenb Jad sased 9|-7| UIYIM ulewal speojased abesany| |
snjeys 9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

ajdoad BunoA B uaip|iy) J9)y payoo 10} sawodno Buiroidw i weatys YIOM

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



%0 %L %98
0 3 9
e)o z ssaiboud uj a|d
SNOILOV 40 SN1V1S

€ XIAN3ddVv

abejusoiad

JaquinN

pajajdwod

ssaiboud uj
pajejdwo)n

pejajdwod

pajajdwon

pajejdwon

peajajdwo)
snjejs

Page 59

s|qissod a|easawin ‘(suosiad pajosuuo) ‘09s ‘uondope ‘Bulisisoy J
}sa0ys ul paoe|d uaip|iyo ainsus 0} pappaqua aJe sassaouid Buluueld Aousuewlad wiBUO| ‘BLIOY UINJRI) SYIUOW §-Z | UIUIM SBLIODINO POOB SAI808. UBIPIIYD JSYY POX0OT]

"dvH “(9€) DV140 %01 UBY} SS8] - WNWIUIW O} SS8IPPe 9
ay) Aq pabeuew Buiaq pue pamairal Ajpuiinol ale si 02 Jo apisino sjuswadeld ||y awWoy JIay} Wodj Sa|i 0 UBY) JayuN) PAAOW USIP|IYD JO Jaquinu 8y} ul uoionpay

%0¢ e Apuauny ‘%0 UBY) SS9| 89 0} sjuswade|d 4| jo uolyodoid ayy| g

pajo|dwo) ‘9102 |Mdy Aq 01 | 0} @seaudul 0} sjuswade|d 18)so} 8snNoy-ul JO JaqunN ¥
'/ 1/91.0Z U1 9oe|d 8)e} 0} pa|Npayods S| [dUB 0} SJUSWISSASSE JO ‘(syuswabpnl ayenbapeur ou pue Jayaq Jo poob 9%,0g) |aued 0} uonejuasald Ajawiy

Jipne paway} v ‘siebeuew Aq painsse Ajjenb ale [sued 0} pajuasaid sjuswissasse %001 pue sjusLssasse Jo sisAjeue Ajjenb pooB Ajusisisuod Buiesipul ejep pue sypny| €
"9|eosawl UIYIM %00 - ssauljawi

pajeidwod pue Ajijenb Jo spJepuE)s [eUONEU }99W O} SJUSWISSISSE ||e JO cou_«muo__m uepuen|

paje|dwo) ‘payess A||n} ainsua pue [apow 8dIA1es mau sy Juswaidwi An4| |

9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

uoisiaoad uondopy @ Bulalso jo Ayjenb ayy Buinoadwi :g weasys YoM

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



%0

%0%

%09

SNOILDV 40 SNlvlis

€ XIAN3ddVv

ssasboud uj

abejuaoiad

JaquinN

pajajdwo)

ssaiboud uj

pajajdwo)

ssaJboud uj

pajajdwod

snjels

Page 60

"uaJp|Iyo Joy suoisioap Ajpwiny
aJow ainsus 0} Jobie) sBuipasdoid yeam gz oy} aAaIyoe pjnoys am pue ‘sjebie}
-soseD umop dajs pue dn dajs se |[om se ‘}as aq 0} 9|qe aq ||IM D pue N|O 10} uoleinp G

9say) 40} SewooINo Job.e} Jno Bunesw ale am pue pappaguwa Ajinj Mou sI SUIINO MET o mw%%.wmmﬁm&ﬂommm%o_wﬁm\mw_Mmﬁ.;m_%wwﬂm_m«_wmw._%w__w_mm—ﬂ\_,mwmmwmmWﬁﬂmﬁm\ﬂ%wﬁm

Nd 8y} Ul YI0AA SHOM [[e ssoloe sindino Jobe) sy} JoAlap 0} € JoUEND Ul Pajo|dwod sem 195U ‘S8SED D PUE 0O ‘NI IIE S1E00][E O} 19B1e) Apjeem - Bjep soueLIOpad
3}I0M Jayund Jow Buiaq ale sjabie) Aiojnje)s }sow pue pajedo|e aie sased AIoJnjess ||y
Hodal siyj Jo swi ay} 1e paje|od Buieq saunby - 91,0z Yolep o
J1a)18q 10 poob pabpnl %8y - GL0Z 1deS ®

Jayaq 1o poob pabpnl %9 - GL0Z Yoien e 9102 UdJeN pus %08

:Buipesb ul Juswanoidwi Buimoys sjipne ase - G10z Jequiaydas pua Aq %0S v

S10Z Yoe pus Aq 9%Se

“Japenp sy} pajoadxa am Uey) Jamo|s 118)39q 10 poob pabpnl yiom jo abejusoiad - podal jipne Yo Alupuol
Jnq Buisu s sased ,poob, Jo abejusoiad ay| ‘yjuow yoes payipne sased e Ajyewixoidde
pue siabuew wes} ||e Ag 8oueldwod %00L YIMm pappaqua Ajjny mou ul ss800.d v 8yl
*G1L0gZ aunp ui pajuswajdwi pue padojarsp

sem wa)sAs Bupjoel uoisinladns v "sI9IOM [BIO0S JO uoisiAladns || Jojuow pue ‘uoisiniadns Ajyjuow Jejnbas aA19081 SI9MIOM [BI100S Iy €
3|0} 0} B|GE MOU 8Je am aInjonu}s Jabeue|y wea| payldwis 8y} JO UORONPOIIUI BU} UNAA
‘siseq Jejnbal e uo pamainal Buiaq si siyL “(sJuswaiNbal 80IAIBS Y)IM 8OUBPIODDE Ul) J8YIOM [BI00S z

‘s1ayIoMm [E100S payijenb Joj | 18 AJualind Si 80IAI8S BY) UIY)IM peo| aseo abesane ay| paiyienb Jad g1 mojeq Jo Je sulewal 80IAI8S 8Y} SSOI0e peo| 8sed abesane sy
‘sjsod
01 Buiurewsi ay ||y 0} Aesuspun si JusWINIOSY "0} pa}inIoal Usaq aAey sjsod Jabeuew

wea) jusueurad g| SYuOW XIs JSe| 8y} UIYIAA "sIapjoy isod jusuewlad pue wiajul 'G10z Iudy - #0e(d Ul aunjonuys Juswabeuew aonoeld paydwig| |
O UOIJeUIqWIOD B UM pal} aJe s)sod Juswabuew weay) ||y aJeD [BI00S S,uaIpliyD Ulyim
swes} ||e ssoioe pajuswaldwi usag mou sey ainjonl)s Juswabeuew paydwis mau ay |
9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

sjuswabuelle Juawabeuew asoesd paroidwi pue Buijiom jo sAem mau Buippaquig :9 wealsys YI0M

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



%0 %EL %88
8 0 l L
e)o e ssaiboud uj a|d
SNOILOV 40 SN1VlS

€ XIAN3ddVv

abejusoiad

JaquinN

Page 61

'papIodal
pajejdwod pajeidwod sue|d pUE S)USLISSESSE YSL BAIDAY SARY ||B PUE pasoes) Sased 380 10 %00L| S
s191duwo |eosawl} UIYIM SMaIASI DY %001} *S9|eosaw}
pa33| o) |BOSaWI} UIYHIM P|ay S92UBI8JU0D 40 MBIASI ||e JO %001 Aiojniels uiyym paya|dwiod ale SMalAal QY] PUB S80Ua18jU0D) dD (B JO %00) L
pajajdwod 9%,00| sem ssadoud sIy} G102
pajajdwo) 09( IV ‘Smalnal julod-piw Buliojuow Joj ssao0id ay) Buimainal a1em am G0z 3das 1y - 'S§800.1d UoNN|osay andsiq pue mairay juiod-pijy pappaqua Ajin4 9
sBuieaw wea) Ajyyuow Buunp s,0Y| Aq pamainay -
Buiob 9IIAISS B} SSOJOE JuSWAA0IdWI SALP 0} SBNURUOD AJAIE d|d - ‘IHVINS ale
(350 n_:Ew sypne Ajyjuow yym eoueldwod %00} - jey} suejd uopoe Jes|o BuidojoAsp 821AI8S 8Y) SSOJOE JusWaAoIdW| AP 0} BNURUOD| G
Pa33| 9 paje|dwod ussq sey 91/510g 104 dWwelBoid }pNY PUE omeweld YO 8y] - 1M sBuipuly soueInssy Ajjent AJUIUOJ\ PUB SOUBWIONS JO MBIASY PaINoNig
ssalboud u| Jodau sy} Jo awi} ay) Je paye|jod Bulag sainbly - 910z Yose ‘9102 yole Jo pus Aq Japaq Jo poob pabpnl sJom [E100S ||e Jo %08|
Bulobug . ‘9102 yotep Jo pus Aq sue|d pue sjuswssasse
- pajajdwo) Pa|ge} 89 0} sYInsal ‘paje|dwod Lasq Sey 1IPNE PIIYd By} JO 820N € Uy 9010A SPJIYO BY) JO BOUBPIAS pUE 3ooeId Ajienb pooB sjeoipur sypne 1o %0g| €
pajajdwon G0z uer aouls asue|dwod Jipne %001 '9% 001 @oueldwod jipne jo abejusdiad z
5102 |udy | uo payoune| 910z/G10Z 40} E
pajejdwod swweibold Ipny pue GLoz |udy | payoune| pue o paublis suomawel4 aoueinssy Ajjeno Homaweld yO pappaque Alind| |
snjeys 9102 11dy Uiy Je ssaiboid uondy ON

@oueInssy Ajijenp aAdayT 1/ Weal}s YIOM

dIS isulebe podaa ssaiboad yuow gz}



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



APPENDIX 4
Glossary of Terms Used

AD Assistant Director

ADCS Association of Directors of Children's Services Ltd
ADM Agency Decision Maker

AIT Asylum Intake Team

AP Advanced Practitioner

AYSE Assessed and Supported Year in Employment
CADA Police description for the purpose of crime logging
CIC Children in Care

CIN Children in Need

CP Child Protection

CSC Children's Social Care

CSE Child Sexual Exploitation

CSWT Children’s Social Work Team

CYPS Children and Young People’s Services

DV Domestic Violence

EDT Emergency Duty Team

EET Education, Employment or Training

FGC Family Group Conference

HARP Hillingdon Access to Resources Panel

HCL HCL Workforce Solutions

HR Human Resources

ICPC International Child Protection Certificate

ICS Integrated Children's System (aka Protocol)

IDP Individual Development Plan

IDVA Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy service
IFA Independent Foster Agency

KPI Key Performance Indicator

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 63



LAC
LPM
LSCB
L&D
MASH
MOPAC
NEET
NRPF
NQSW
NYAS
PADA
PEP
PIP
PLO
PMM
P&l
QA
RAS
SDQ
SGO
SM
SMART
SMM
SW
S20
™

YP
YPIDVA
YPS

Looked After Children

Legal Planning Meeting

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board
Learning & Development

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub
Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime
Not in Education, Employment, or Training
No Recourse to Public Funds

Newly Qualified Social Worker

National Youth Advocacy Service
Performance & Development Appraisal
Personal Education Plan

Practice Improvement Practitioner
Public Law Outline

Permanency Monitoring Meeting
Performance & Intelligence team
Quality Assurance

Referral and Assessment Service
Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire
Special Guardianship Orders

Service Manager

Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time-limited

Service Managers Meeting
Social Worker

Section 20

Team Manager

Young People

Young People’s Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy service

Young People's Service

APPENDIX 4

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 64



Agenda ltem 7
QUARTERLY SCHOOL PLACES PLANNING UPDATE

Contact Officer: Dan Kennedy
Telephone: 01895 250495

REASON FOR ITEM

To update the Committee about the demand for school places in Hillingdon.
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

It is recommended that the Committee:

1. Notes the update about the demand for school places.
2. Questions officers about the update.

INFORMATION
Introduction

This paper presents to the Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee an
update on planning for primary and secondary school places in Hillingdon. For ease of
reference, this update also re-states some background information included in previous
updates.

Background to School Places Forecasting

Demand for school places has been driven by rising birth rates, new residential developments
and families moving into the Borough. Forecasts are updated annually. However, monitoring of
demand for places and related analytical work is ongoing throughout the year.

Work on the next update of the pupil forecasts will commence in early May, with updated
forecasts prepared by June/July 2016, as the required data (such as birth rates and projected
population figures) become available.

Future Demand for School Places

The 2015 forecast confirmed that the future need for places had largely been met through the
large and successful primary school expansion programme and the provision of three new
schools. The forecast showed some residual demand, mainly in the north of the Borough
(Northwood and Ruislip areas), with a total of three to four additional forms of entry required.
However, some additional demand is also forecast in the south of the Borough (Hayes area). As
previously reported, the Reception intake to Nanaksar Primary School has been suspended by
the school in the absence of sufficient classroom accommodation for Reception year groups.
The loss of 120 places each year is inevitably increasing place pressures in the area.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 65



Allocation of Reception Places for 2016 Admission

The offer date for Reception places for 2016 entry is 18 April 2016. Work is underway to finalise
offers and a verbal update on progress will be given at the meeting.

Action Being Taken

Feasibility studies for the permanent expansion of three primary school sites in the north of the
Borough are progressing in order to meet the forecast need for additional school places.

Since the previous update to the Committee, changes to admission criteria for community
schools were approved by Cabinet in February 2017. These changes will come into effect for
admissions from September 2017 and will enhance local residents' access to places at their
local school.

Future Demand for Secondary School Places

The larger primary pupil cohorts are now beginning to move into the secondary phase. As
previously reported, over the next five years, 24.5 additional forms of entry in the secondary
phase will be needed, mainly in the north of the Borough. This reflects the position across
London. 5.5 additional forms of secondary school entry are in the pipeline, leaving 19 additional
forms of entry to be provided (14 in the north of the Borough and 5 in the south of the Borough).

Secondary Places Offers for 2016 Admissions

Offer day for admission to Year 7 in September 2016 was 1 March 2016, with the closing date
for acceptance 15 March. All on-time applicants were offered a secondary school place, with 91
per cent of Hillingdon applicants receiving one of their top three schools. This is despite an eight
percent rise in applications (compared with the London-wide increase of 3.3 per cent). A record
high of 3,323 applications for secondary school places were received. Seventy-one per cent of
children applying for school places in Hillingdon have been offered their first choice of school
(higher than in Hounslow, Ealing and Harrow).

Action Being Taken

The rebuild and expansion of Northwood School by one form of entry in 2016 is on track to
open during the Autumn 2016. Two further projects, at Abbotsfield and Swakeleys schools,
which are being delivered by the Education Funding Agency, are expected to be completed in
2017.

Officers are continuing to work with five further schools to explore options for expansions and a
decision is expected shortly on these options. In addition, the Council has been informed by the
Department for Education (DfE) of five expressions of interest submitted to them for new free
schools in the Borough. These proposals are at a very early stage and are subject to formal
evaluation by the DfE and identification of sites.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 66



Agenda Iltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Agenda ltem 9

FORWARD PLAN 2015/2016

Contact officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655

REASON FOR ITEM

The Committee is required by its Terms of Reference to consider the Forward Plan and
comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on key decisions which relate to services
within its remit (before they are taken by the Cabinet or by the Cabinet Member).
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE

e To comment on items going to the Cabinet or to the Cabinet Member for decision.
e Or to note the items and decide not to comment.

INFORMATION

The latest published Forward Plan is attached. The Committee may wish to consider the
non standard items that fall within its remit.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

To consider whether there are comments or suggestions that the Committee wishes to
make.

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



"snje)g Awspedy 0} YSAUOD O] USIM OUYM

uosianed oouelg s|jooyos 0} sases| Buoj jo Bunuesb 1oUNOH 8y SUOISIBAUO0)
oll9nd [BUDIIN - SY| ueyieuor 41D snoley\| Joj [erosdde yaas 0} Jouiqe) o0} Jodal plepue)s Awapeay| |S
oouelg ‘ybnolog ayj ul payeonpa ualp|iyo Joy saoe|d
ueyjeuor JUBIDIYNS JBAIOP 0] Yord) Uo deay pue sapiioe)
youi4 Aqqog 41D 939D apeJbdn 0y JapJo ul swwelbold [eyded |00yoss
(¢) sreAud s99)|Nsuod| /390 Jowjed spuowwis 8] ssalboud 01 Jepio ul suoisioap Alessaosu|ajepdn swwelboid
/o1and ajelodio) uear - Sy piaeq 411D snouey| Auejsanbau pue jauige) ayepdn [im podal siy ] jeyide) jooyossg| |S

"snje)g Awapedy 0] YSAUOD O] USIM OUYM

uoslianed oouelg s|jooyos 0} sases| buoj jo Bunuelb j1oUN0 By} SUOISI9AUOY)
ol|gnd [9BYDIN - SY| ueyieuor 41D snoliep| Joj jenoidde yess 0} Jaulqen 0} Lodal piepuels v Awapeoy| |g
oouelg ‘ybnoiog sy} ul payeonpa ualp|Iyo Joj saoe|d
ueyjeuor JUBIOIYNS JBAIIBP 0} XorJ} uo daay pue saljioe)
youi4 Aqqog JID % 390 apelbdn 0} Joplo ul swwelboid |enudes jooyos
(¢) @reaud so9)|nsuod| /390 Jowled spuowwis ay) ssaJboud 0] JapJo ul suoisioap Alessaoau|ajepdn swwesboid
/ongnd ajesodio) uesr - Sy piaeq 41D snoliep| Aueisenbal pue jauiqed aiepdn |im Jodal siy | [eydes jooyog| |S

|udy L2 - 18ulqe)|

yjuow ydea waj| pJepuels = |S

aoueuld =04 UolENSIUIWPY = QY dIeD [BID0S = DS  SIJIAISG SJUAPISAY = §Y :Sjuswpedaq |1DuUno)H

suoseal uois|oap uonewsoul 9jqisuodsay [1Iouno)| (s)piep s|iejap J9yyn4 suoilsioaq sy
Q uoIsIoaQg ayj uo J3yuny 1oy (s)roquiapy Iin4 Aq m:_EOOQD
ajenld uolje}nsuoy| }oeuod 122110 jauigen| uoisioap '

/3land leuld

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Agenda ltem 10
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016

Contact Officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655
REASON FOR REPORT
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This is
a standard item at the end of each agenda.
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE

1. To confirm dates for meetings; and
2. To make suggestions for future working practices and reviews.

WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

24 Jun 2015 | Major Review - Consideration of Scoping Report

CR5 School Admissions Update

Update on previous Major Review of the Committee - Strengthening
the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

15 July 2015 | Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - progress
report
CR5

Budget Planning Report for Education & Children's Services 2016/17

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

9 Sep 2015 Major Review — Witness Session 1

CR5 Quarterly School Place Planning Report

Annual Complaints Report 2014/15 for Children and Young People's
Services

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 81



7 Oct 2015

CR5

Major Review — Witness Session 2

Consideration of topics for minor review

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy - Implementation Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

25 Nov 2015

CR5

Major Review — Witness Session 3

Consideration of topics for minor review

Update Report - Progress on Implementation of previous review
'Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special Educational Needs and
Disability (SEND) Reforms

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

13 Jan 2016

CR5

Major Review - presentation of draft final report

Minor Review - Consideration of Scoping Report

Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon 2014/2015

Budget Proposals Report

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

17 Feb 2016

CR4 and
CR4A

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 82




16 Mar 2016

CR5

Minor Review - Witness Session

Update on previous Major Review of the Committee - Reducing the
Risk of Young People Engaging in Criminal Activity and Anti-Social
Behaviour

Update on previous review - Elective Home Education

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

13 Apr 2016

CR5

Minor Review - Update

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - 2015/16
Overview

Quarterly school place planning

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy - update on issue of Female
Genital Mutilation (FGM)

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

*all meetings begin at 7pm.

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 13 April 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 83




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



	Agenda
	4 To Agree the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 16 March 2016
	5 Single Meeting Review - Supporting Educational Aspiration for Disadvantaged Children
	Witness Statement - Hillingdon Primary
	Witness Statement - The Skills Hub / Young People™s Academy

	6 Children and Young People's Social Care Service Improvement Plan - Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Childrens Social Care Services Improvement Plan 2015 - 16
	Appendix 2 - Children's Social Care Improvement Action Plan 2015-16
	Appendix 3 - 12 Month Progress Report Against Improvement Plan 2015-16
	Appendix 4 - Glossary of Terms Used

	7 Quarterly School Places Planning Update
	8 Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) - Update
	PART II - FGM Update - Appendix A

	9 Forward Plan
	Forward Plan

	10 Work Programme 2015/16

